# **CZECH UNIVERSITY OF LIFE SCIENCES PRAGUE**

# Faculty of Agrobiology, Food and Natural Resources

Department of Agroecology and Crop production

# Understanding and modelling compound climate and weather events and their impacts on oilseed rape

Doctoral dissertation thesis



Author: Md Rafique Ahasan Chawdhery

Supervisor: doc. Dr. Mgr. Vera Potopová

Co-Supervisor: prof. Ing. Josef Soukup, CSc.

Praha, 2023

## DECLARATION

I hereby declare that the present dissertation work "**Understanding and modelling compound climate and weather events and their impacts on oilseed rape**" is my research work and I have properly acknowledged all the sources of materials used in this dissertation.

Signature: Radeur

Place and date: In Prague; 25.08.2023

## **DEDICATIONS**

This work is dedicated to the precious gifts of my life

My dear son, Raif Ahasan Chowdhury my mother, Rashida Chowdhury and all my family members

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

#### Praise be to God the Almighty for the endless blessings.

First and foremost, I would like to express my deepest gratitude to my supervisor, Assoc. professor doc. Dr. Mgr. Vera Potopová and co-supervisor, professor Ing. Josef Soukup, CSc., for their patient guidance, keen encouragement, support, and valuable advice throughout the entire doctoral research period.

I am grateful to and would like to extend my thanks to the Rector, Dean, and the other members of the academic council for allowing me to complete my doctoral degree at this university. I would also like to thank the Czech Central Institute for Supervising and Testing in Agriculture (CISTA) authority for their support during the field experiments. Special thanks to Ing. Petr Zehnálek from CISTA for his collaboration during the experiments and post-harvest analysis activities. I also thank Bc. Tatiana Luta, Ing. Nina Muntean, Ing. Igor Potop, Ing. Jakub Mikulka, and Ing. Ondřej Szabó for helping me with the experimental data collection. Furthermore, I would also like to thank other members of the department of Agroecology and Crop Production (doc. Ing. Josef Holec, doc. Ing. Luboš Türkott, doc. Mgr. Marie Musiolková, doc. Ing. Kateřina Hamouzová, doc. Ing. Pavel Hamouz, doc. Ing. Václav Brant, Hana Raichlová) and my colleagues (Mgr. Tudor Trifan, Dr. Madhab Kumar Sen, Ing. Jaromír Šuk) for their hearty welcome and cooperation.

A very special thanks to the funding authorities: grant by the Ministry of Agriculture of the Czech Republic (Adaptive potential of wheat resistance to drought, heat and frost- NAZV-QK1910269), grant of UGS project (Vulnerability of selected fodder production to support the demand of livestock and renewable energy sectors under climate change conditions-CZ.02.2.69/0.0/0.0/19\_073/0016944), grant of TA ČR project (Water systems and water management in the Czech Republic in conditions of the climate change- SS02030027), grant of HORIZON project (HORIZON-CL6-2022-CLIMATE-01: Land, ocean and water for climate action, HORIZON-CL6-2022-CLIMATE-01-04. ECO-READY-101084201-GAP-101084201) for the financial support for this research work. Also, thanks to the anonymous native English person for proofreading the thesis.

### ABSTRACT

Winter oilseed rape (Brassica napus L., WOSR) is the most essential source of vegetable oil in Europe. Compound agrometeorological events (CEs) are considered to be one of the main factors controlling crop growth and yields under changing climate conditions. To increase the WOSR yield per unit area, utilizing appropriate farming management and sustainable adaptation strategies is now a growing concern. The complex interaction of temperature and precipitation events has major influences on the growth and yield of WOSR. The main focus of the study was to assess the simulation performance of the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model (incorporated in the Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer (DSSAT) program) for the first time in the Czech Republic. Based on the observed growth and yield parameters of WOSR in the growing seasons 2020–2021 (dry conditions) and 2021–2022 (normal conditions), the study was carried out using three WOSR varieties (Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka) in three different climatic regions (Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká). These varieties were added to the DSSAT crop variety database as new varieties, and their parameters were supplemented based on the experimental field data. Model calibration and evaluation were performed based on the root mean square errors (RMSEs) for each variety. For the Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka, the performance agreement between the observed and simulated yields revealed lower RMSE values of 0.26 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 0.04 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 0.07 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively. Regarding seed oil content, Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka had corresponding RMSEs of 1.18%, 0.67%, and 1.19%, respectively. These results were used to evaluate the model's calibration accuracy and performance, and it was found to be well enough for simulating the selected WOSR varieties for experimental activities. Temperature variations have an impact on the growth and development of WOSR, and the warm temperature region of Chrastava has lower leaf area index (LAI) values for Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka, 3.75, 3.69, and 3.57 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup>, respectively. On the other hand, Vysoká exhibited higher growth and LAI values as a normal temperature region, with LAI values for Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka of 4.73, 4.78, and 4.69 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup>, respectively. Under the projected temperature scenario, the highest simulated maximum LAI was recorded from the Vysoká location with the Sněžka variety, while the Chrastava location showed the lowest simulated maximum LAI with the Architect variety.

In addition, the frequency of occurrence of CEs (heat stress during flowering and grain filling stages, black frost, water logging during seeding, and floral bud development) was quantified and evaluated. Projections of CE occurrence for the periods 2021–2040 and 2041–2060 showed that the hot and wet scenarios will experience an increase in heat stress and water logging conditions during flowering and grain-filling stages in all experimental locations. However, the cold and dry scenario will be more vulnerable to a significant rise in the black frost event. Based on the evaluation of the climatic condition, Sněžka and Temptation varieties were found to be the most potential varieties for seed and oil yield, respectively. Moreover, the Vysoká location indicated the most suitable cropping location for WOSR. The findings of this doctoral study will contribute to our understanding of complex interactions among compound events and WOSR crop production dynamics. By utilizing the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model as a tool to address these effects, we can improve WOSR management strategies.

Keywords: Winter oilseed rape (WOSR), compound events, CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model, climate change, crop simulation, growth, yield, oil

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

T	ABLE OF CONTENTS	1
1.	INTRODUCTION	6
	1.1 Hypotheses of the research	8
	1.2 Objectives of the research	9
2.	LITERATURE REVIEW	10
	2.1 Oilseed rape: an important oil crop	10
	2.2 Status of oilseed rape production in the last decade	12
	2.3 Compound weather events during WOSR production	12
	2.4 Climate change impacts on WOSR production	14
	2.5 Crop modelling approach and application of crop growth models for WOSR	15
3.	MATERIALS AND METHODS	17
	3.1 Experimental activities	17
	3.2 Selection of WOSR varieties	18
	3.3 Datasets	21
	Weather data	21
	Crop data	24
	Soil data	26
	Soil Water Index (SWI) for soil moisture balance	27
	3.4 Crop modelling activities	27
	Oilseed crop model (CSM-CROPGRO-Canola) in DSSAT program	28
	Evaluation of crop simulation model	30
4.	RESULTS	31
	4.1 Application of the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model	31
	Estimation of WOSR genetic coefficients	31
	Model assessment based on simulated and observed LAI	33
	4.2 Model assessment based on simulated and observed seed yield and seed oil content	34
	4.3 Evaluation of simulated and observed yield and seed oil content of WOSR under diffe	rent
	climatic conditions	37
	4.4 Risk of compound events to quantify the vulnerability of WOSR production	40
	4.5 Evaluation of WOSR varieties based on simulated yield attributes under current and proje	cted
	climate scenarios	47
5.	DISCUSSION	51
	5.1 Implementation of the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model	51
	5.2 Impacts of temperature changes	52
	5.3 Impacts of drought stress	53
	5.4 Risk assessment of compound events during WOSR production	54
	5.5 Uncertainty in climate scenarios (temperature and precipitation) for the Czech Republic	2.56
6.	CONCLUSIONS	58
7.	PUBLICATIONS AND OUTCOMES	60
8.	LIST OF USED LITERATURE	73
A	ppendices	87

# List of Tables

Table 1. Potential agronomic characteristics of the selected WOSR varieties
Table 2. Structure of weather data input into the WeatherMan module of the DSSAT program21
Table 3. Evaluation of weather dataset during the growing seasons    23
Table 4. Crop management dataset for calculation of growth coefficient for oilseed rape varieties
Table 5. Selected soil parameters for the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model from the experimental
locations
Table 6. Parameters finalization during the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model calibration
Table 7. Evaluation of the simulated CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model against observed seed yield
Table 8: Evaluation of the simulated CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model against observed seed oil
content
Table 9. Occurrence of compound risk events on WOSR for observation period 2010-2022
(cases/number of days)
Table 10. Projection of risk compound events occurrence on WOSR for the periods 2021-2040 and
2041-2060 under RCP8.5
Table 11. Impact assessment of compound events on WOSR using various statistical indicators
(profit and loss) during 2000-2021 in the Czech Republic

# List of Figures

Figure 1. Scientific classification of offseed rape
Figure 2. The growth stages of oilseed rape according to the BBCH system11
Figure 3. Experimental field locations
Figure 4. Crop phenological design of the experimental plot24
Figure 5. Main components and modular framework of DSSAT program
Figure 6. Simplified input (A) and output (B) components of CSM-CROPGRO model29
Figure 7. CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model assessment based on the observed and simulated leaf
area index
Figure 8. Observed and simulated yields of winter rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season
Figure 9. Observed and simulated yields of winter rape varieties for the 2021-2022 growing season
Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-
Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season
Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020- 2021 growing season
Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020- 2021 growing season
<ul> <li>Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season</li></ul>
Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season       39         Figure 11. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2021-2022 growing season       40         Figure 12. Compound climate events affecting yield attributes during WOSR growing season       44         Figure 13. Compound events on yield performance of WOSR in the Czech Republic
<ul> <li>Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season</li></ul>
<ul> <li>Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season</li></ul>

# LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

WOSR	Winter oilseed rape
FAOSTAT	Food and Agriculture Organization Statistical Database
EU	European Union
UN	United Nations
CE	Compound Events
CZ	Czech Republic
$CO_2$	Carbon dioxide
RCP	Representative Concentration Pathway
IPCC	Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
GS	Growing season
SGS	Sensitive growing season
DSSAT	Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer
BBCH	Biologische Bundesanstalt, Bundessortenamt und CHemical Industry
CSO	Czech Statistical Office
EPIC	Environmental Policy Integrated Climate
APEX	Agricultural Policy Environmental Extender
APSIM	Agricultural Production System sIMulator
STICS	Simulateur mulTIdisciplinaire pour les Cultures Standard
CropSyst	Cropping Systems Simulation Model
GIS	Geographic Information System
BioMA	Biophysical Model Applications
CISTA	Czech Central Institute for Supervising and Testing in Agriculture
HMI-ph	Loamy brown soil-sandy loam soil (light)
Hmm-h	Brown soil typical- clay soil (medium)
LMg-h	Luvism pseudoglea- clay soil (medium)
Nmin	Mineral nitrogen
HTS	Thousand seed weight
.TMX	Temperature maximum
.TMA	Temperature average
.SOL	Soil file
.WTH	Weather file
CHT	Chrastava
STV	Staňkov
VYS	Vysoká
DAP	Days after planting
LAI	Leaf area index
USDA	United States Department of Agriculture
SBuild	Soil build module

ART	Architect
TEM	Temptation
SNK	Sněžka
SAT	Saturated water content
BD	Bulk density
SRGF	Root growth factor
SLPF	Soil fertility factor
Corg	Organic carbon
CEC	Cation exchange capacity
Total N	Total nitrogen
LL	Lower limit of available water to plant
DUL	Drained upper limit or field capacity
Tmin	Minimum temperature
Sc1	Scenario 1
Sc2	Scenario 2
RMSE	Root mean square error
EM-FL	Time between plant emergence and flower appearance (R1) (photothermal
	days)
FL-SH	Time between first flower and first pod (R3) (photothermal days)
FL-SD	Time between first flower and first seed (R5) (photothermal days)
SD-PM	Time between first seed (R5) and physiological maturity (R7) (photothermal
	days)
FL-LF	Time between first flower (R1) and end of leaf expansion (photothermal days)
LFMAX	Maximum leaf photosynthesis rate at 30 $^{\circ}$ C, 350 ppm CO <sub>2</sub> , and high light (mg
	$CO_2 m^{-2}-s)$
SLAVR	Specific leaf area of cultivar under standard growth conditions (cm2/g)
SIZLF	Maximum size of full leaf (three leaflets) (cm <sup>2</sup> )
XFRT	Maximum fraction of daily growth that is partitioned to seed + shell
WTPSD	Maximum weight per seed (g)
SFDUR	Seed filling duration for pod cohort at standard growth conditions
	(photothermal days)
SDPDV	Average seed per pod under standard growing conditions (#/pod)
PODUR	Time required for cultivar to reach final pod load under optimal conditions
	(photothermal days)
THRSH	The maximum ratio of (seed/(seed+shell)) at maturity. Causes seed to stop
	growing as their dry weights increase until shells are filled in a cohort.
	(Threshing percentage).
SDPRO	Fraction protein in seeds (g(protein)/g(seed))
SDLIP	Fraction oil in seeds (g(oil)/g(seed))
PL-EM	Time between planting and emergence (V0) (thermal days)

Time required from emergence to first true leaf (V1), thermal days						
Time required from first true leaf to end of juvenile phase, thermal days						
Time required for floral induction, equal to the minimum number of days for						
floral induction under optimal temperature and daylengths, photothermal						
days						
Time between physiological (R7) and harvest maturity (R8) (days)						
RWDTH Relative width of this ecotype in comparison to the standard width per not						
(YVSWH)						
Relative height of this ecotype in comparison to the standard height per node						
(YVSHT)						
Leaf area index maximum						
Soil Water Index						
Surface Soil Moisture						

### **1. INTRODUCTION**

Winter oilseed rape (Brassica napus L., WOSR) is the third largest oilseed crop in the world and is mainly grown for edible oil, biofuel, and livestock feed (Wallenhammar et al., 2022; FAOSTAT, 2022). WOSR is a significant contributor of biofuel and crop-based oil to both the European Union (EU) and worldwide. Almost 80% of the EU's biofuel production comes from oilseed rape (Ouvrard and Jacquemart, 2019). Furthermore, FAOSTAT (2021) reported that 16% of the world's crop-based oil production is derived from oilseed rape. 16% of the world's crop-based oil production is derived from oilseed rape. With major producing nations like Germany, Poland, France, Italy, and the Czech Republic (CZ), WOSR is the most important source of vegetable oil in Europe (Pullens et al., 2019). Sunflowers, oilseed rape, and soybeans currently dominate the worldwide oilseed market (Wittkop et al., 2009). According to Zanetti et al. (2021), WOSR is the major oilseed crop, followed by sunflower and other minor crops like camelina and linseed, in the context of European agriculture. The CZ is one of the major producers of oilseed rape, with an annual production of 1.2 million tonnes in 2021 (FAOSTAT, 2022). It is estimated that global food crop production needs to be increased by approximately 30% to feed around 9.7 billion people globally by 2050 (UN, 2022). Considering this ever-increasing population, the demand for high-quality seed oils will continue to rise, and the oilseed market will need to meet the demands with alternatives (Falcon et al., 2022).

This increasing demand can be achieved through suitable farming management, sustainable adaptation strategies, and the selection of potential varieties to enhance the crop yield per unit area (Newmann *et al.*, 2010). However, adverse agrometeorological events continue to have impacts on global agricultural productivity despite advancements in crop management and adaptation strategies (Cohn *et al.*, 2016). Due to its strong reliance on the climate, agriculture is particularly susceptible to the effects of climate change. Temperature and precipitation variations have the greatest impact on oilseed rape productivity due to climate change. Oilseed rape growth and yield are determined by the complex interaction of various environmental factors, such as soil type, water availability, climatic conditions, and fertilizer availability (Weymann *et al.*, 2015; Asare and Scarisbrick, 1995; Mendham *et al.*, 1981).

Crop productivity is predicted to significantly decline as a result of the projected 2.9°C to 5.5°C increase in global temperature by 2060. This might have radical effects on the availability of food, oil, and fiber supplies (Arshad *et al.*, 2021). Compound events (CEs) function as constraining factors regulating crop growth and yields (Potopová *et al.*, 2020, 2023a; Ben-Ari *et al.*, 2018; Ray *et al.*, 2015). The CEs are quantified as crop yield-limiting factors by air temperature, amount and distribution of precipitation, soil moisture content, and evapotranspiration (Pulido-Moncada *et al.*, 2021, Potopová *et al.*, 2021a-b).

According to the climate projections, the average annual air temperature in the CZ might increase between 1.0 and 4.5 °C (in the RCP4.5 scenario) or 2.5 and 5.5 °C (in the RCP8.5 scenario) as compared to 1971–2000 (Rulfová *et al.*, 2021; Potopová *et al.*, 2018). A temperature increase up to 2.0 °C by the middle of this century might be possible (Ceglar *et al.*, 2019; Jacob *et al.*, 2018). The anthropogenic increase in atmospheric CO<sub>2</sub> concentrations may result in a decline in stomatal conductance (Ainsworth and Rogers, 2007), which might reduce canopy transpiration and enhance the water status of soil and plants (Bernacchi *et al.*, 2007). Enhanced CO<sub>2</sub> concentrations might improve water use efficiency, but they may also have the opposite effect due to temperature rises that accelerate evapotranspiration (Jaggard *et al.*, 2010).

Crops may experience complex interactions between high temperatures and CO<sub>2</sub> concentrations, as well as unpredictable precipitation patterns that are impacted by a variety of environmental drivers (Walker and Schulze, 2008). Additionally, the soil moisture projections showed that the area and intensity of soil drying (drought) are strongly dependent on crop growing seasons (GS), sensitive growing seasons (SGS), and catchments (Ruosteenoja *et al.*, 2018; Samaniego *et al.*, 2018). At the catchment level, soil moisture content, crop types, crop water availability, and soil properties over land will affect the evaporation and plant-soil dynamics (Merk *et al.*, 2021). However, the rate of change will vary with available energy, wind speed, air, temperature, and air humidity (Eshonkulov *et al.*, 2019).

In the case of precipitation, projected future changes may enhance uncertainty at regional scales, which can obstruct the WOSR growing season and affect growth and yields (Papadimitriou *et al.*, 2019). Under such conditions, crop models and decision support systems can be useful tools for researchers, teachers, scientists, extension personnel, policymakers, and planners to help and support the application and evaluation of sustainable and long-term alternative management practices (Nasim *et al.*, 2016). Crop modelling can be used to analyze the impact of climate change on existing cropping systems (Lenz-Wiedemann *et al.*, 2010). The utilization of crop models is a promising possibility for the integration of physiological understanding of crop features. It allows for the examination of potential growth and significant production restrictions in varying environments and management scenarios (Saseendran *et al.*, 2010). The CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model is a generic crop growth model incorporated with the Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer (DSSAT) program, which is used globally to simulate crop development and yield characteristics of oilseed rape under current and projected climatic conditions (Hoogenboom *et al.*, 2019b; Jones *et al.*, 2003).

This work aims to test and evaluate the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model combined with the climate model to simulate the WOSR growing stages and yield estimations under the current and projected climatic conditions at three different experimental locations in the CZ.

### **1.1 Hypotheses of the research**

- 1. The tendency of increases in the intensity and frequency of compound weather events related to climate change will lead to higher yield variability and reduce the qualitative parameters of WOSR in the main producing regions.
- 2. Temperatures will change due to climate change and will therefore affect the development and growth of WOSR.
- 3. Drought stress during the early stages of crop growth can lead to unfavorable conditions that will affect crop establishment and subsequent growth, thus reducing the success of crop establishment.

4. The joint precipitation and temperature extreme events during the seed-filling period may affect yields of WOSR, and therefore climate change may affect crop yield stability.

### **1.2 Objectives of the research**

- 1. Modelling the performance of oil-seed rape varieties in relation to compound climate/weather events in the Czech Republic.
- 2. To evaluate the response of oilseed rape yield and oiliness parameters to weather factors.
- 3. To quantify the vulnerability of the winter varieties of oilseed rape to climate change by the integration of climate models and crop models.
- 4. To identify which aspects of WOSR crop production are most affected by projected changes in climatic conditions.

## **2. LITERATURE REVIEW**

#### 2.1 Oilseed rape: an important oil crop

According to the United Nations, the global population is projected to reach 9.7 billion and 10.4 billion by 2050 and 2100, respectively (UN, 2022). With the world population continuing to rise, there will be a constant need for high-quality seed oils. As a result, the oilseed market will have to explore alternative ways to meet these demands. Vegetable oils are considered excellent sources of edible oil as well as renewable industrial oils (Wallenhammar *et al.*, 2022). Besides being the second largest oilseed crop globally, WOSR is also considered the third and second largest source of vegetable oil and protein meal in the world, respectively (Wallenhammar *et al.*, 2022). The scientific classification of oilseed rape is shown in Figure 1.



Kingdom: Plantae Clade: Angiosperms Order: Brassicales Family: Brassicaceae Genus: Brassica Species: Brassica. Napus L.

Figure 1. Scientific classification of oilseed rape

According to the BBCH (Biologische Bundesanstalt, Bundessortenamt und CHemical Industry) system (Meier *et al.*, 2009), oilseed rape has nine principal growth stages (Figure 2). Despite the fact that the principal growth stages are shown in chronological order, the beginning of each stage is not dependent on the completion of the preceding stage. Hence, several stages might overlap (Meier *et al.*, 2009). The main growth stages include

germination and emergence (GS0: 0-09 days), leaf development (GS1: 10–19 days), sideshoot formation (GS2: 20–29 days), stem elongation/extension (GS3: 30-39 days), inflorescence/flower-bud emergence (GS5: 50–59 days), flowering (GS6: 60–69 days), pod/seed (fruit) development (GS7: 71–79 days), pod/seed (fruit) ripening (GS8: 80–89 days), and senescence (GS9: 90–99 days) (Meier *et al.*, 2009).



Figure 2. The growth stages of oilseed rape according to the BBCH system (Meier et al., 2009)

Oilseed rape is mainly cultivated in the winter months over most of Europe and Asia (Beszterda and Nogala-Kałucka, 2019), as this crop requires vernalization for flowering (O'Neill *et al.*, 2019). Generally, winter oilseed rape is sown in autumn, but it remains in a leaf rosette on the soil surface during the winter. Flowering starts in the late spring, and ripening occurs until mid-summer (Rahman *et al.*, 2018). In Europe, winter oilseed rape is mainly grown as an annual break crop in three- to four-year rotations with cereals such as wheat and barley (Hegewald *et al.*, 2018). Generally, winter oilseed rape can be cultivated

on a variety of well-drained soils with a pH range between 5.5 and 8.3 (Hennig *et al.*, 2021). It is primarily wind-pollinated, but it can also be pollinated by bees. Europe is the largest region of oilseed rape producers (35%) globally (FAOSTAT, 2022). The Czech Republic is currently the world's tenth-largest oilseed rape producer. Between 2000 and 2020, the Czech Republic produced an average of approximately 1.07 million tonnes of oilseed rape (FAOSTAT, 2022).

#### 2.2 Status of oilseed rape production in the last decade

In the last decade, there has been a significant rise in both the cultivated area and production of oilseed rape worldwide. According to FAOSTAT 2022, since 2010, the global production of oilseed rape has increased from ~59 million tons to ~72 million tons (~1.21X), whereas the cultivated area has increased from ~32 million hectares to ~35 million hectares (~1.11X). The yield of oilseed rape was significantly improved in the early 1990s by enhancing the performance of hybrid varieties. Single-cross hybrids were popular across all oilseed-growing regions, including Europe. Particularly in the last 20 years, new oilseed rape varieties with distinct qualitative (fatty acid profile, fiber content), quantitative (yield), and phenotypic (growth rate) characteristics have been released to the market (Wittkop *et al.*, 2009). Oilseed rape is the second most significant winter crop in the Czech Republic, occupying 15.7% of total cultivable land (CSO, 2022).

### 2.3 Compound weather events during WOSR production

Numerous environmental conditions influence WOSR cultivation, which may have a substantial impact on yield and productivity (Paulauskas *et al.*, 2013). The compound climatic events have been found to negatively impact WOSR, impeding its growth and ultimately lowering the yield. Low temperatures and temperature changes cause serious hazards to WOSR (Jankowska and Bortkevich *et al.*, 2019). Researchers have developed a range of predictive models to understand and predict climatic impacts on the growth and yield attributes of WOSR. These models work based on numerous climatic factors such as air temperature, relative humidity, precipitation, and sunshine duration (Koch *et al.*, 2007). Increased CO<sub>2</sub> levels have been shown to support WOSR by increasing yields and biomass, while higher temperatures were found to be a significant factor in the loss of biomass and yield (Clausen *et al.*, 2011). Drebenstedt *et al.*, (2020) investigated that the combination of drought and heat significantly reduces the leaf area and yield of winter oilseed rape. Conversely, Cold damage (below freezing  $<^{\circ}$ C) is a major event when it comes to winter oilseed rape, particularly during the early stages of development. This extremely low temperature has the potential to damage plant cells, prevent significant physiological processes, and inhibit plant growth and development. As a result, frost damage can reduce biomass accumulation and oil content at harvest (Rys *et al.*, 2020). Furthermore, Wollmer *et al.* (2018) have found that heavy rainfall can increase soil erosion, runoff, and disease, which leads to a decrease in winter oilseed rape yields.

Photo-thermal factors controlled the growth stages of WOSR from emergence to flowering, whereas temperature changed from flowering to maturity (Xu *et al.*, 2021; Arjona *et al.*, 2020). The longest growth phase of WOSR involves juvenile growth, emergence, overwintering, and stem elongation. For seedling germination and emergence, optimal field conditions are crucial. Temperatures below 10°C might lead to poor germination, whereas extremely dry and high temperatures might negatively impact seedling emergence (Matar *et al.*, 2021). Due to inadequate plant establishment, the early developmental stages are highly susceptible and frequently decrease the seed yield of WOSR (Yang *et al.*, 2014).

Despite substantial biomass production during flowering, excessive precipitation during the pre-flowering phase may have a negative impact on yield (Takashima *et al.*, 2013). Due to reduced total leaf area development and a lower rate of photosynthesis, plants may suffer at the flowering stage (Balodis and Gaile, 2016). Lack of available water during the post-flowering period reduces yield as canopy transpiration cannot be sustained (Weymann *et al.*, 2015). WOSR growth stages play a key role in yield estimation models, and the main parameters impacting WOSR growth stages and yield are environmental conditions such as temperature, irradiation, and precipitation (Weymann *et al.*, 2015). Changes in temperature and precipitation are the worst compound weather events for WOSR production. Different crops are known to be affected by these two elements differently.

In all stages of oilseed rape's growth, temperature plays a critical role in both development and growth (Rathke et al., 2006). Temperature is crucial for germination and emergence under ideal field conditions. Extremely low or high temperatures have a deleterious impact on the emergence of WOSR during the germination stage (Brown et al., 2019). While heat and water stress are predicted to have a negative influence on yields and productivity in Southern Europe, longer growing seasons and generally abundant rainfall are predicted to boost total yields in Northern Europe (Webber et al., 2018). Although WOSR is the principal oilseed crop in Europe, the majority of the crop's production is concentrated in Germany, Poland, Italy, the Czech Republic, and France (van Duren et al., 2015; Monfreda et al., 2008). Temperature and precipitation during the seed-filling period were found to be adversely connected with WOSR yields, according to experimental regression-based analyses (Sharif et al., 2017; Peltonen-Sainio et al., 2010). In addition, drought stress may also play an important role in WOSR productivity and yield stability. Studies have shown that drought stress during the early stages of crop growth may create unfavorable conditions that ultimately impact crop establishment and subsequent growth (Ahmad et al., 2021). Prolonged wet periods, however, may also lead to improper seed beds, which would ultimately damage crop establishment (Rathke et al., 2006).

### 2.4 Climate change impacts on WOSR production

Effects of climate change (e.g., drought or wet) have direct and indirect effects on crop establishment and subsequent growth. Different experimental studies have shown that the effects of climate change during the seed formation stage can result in reduced crop yield in WOSR (Sharif *et al.*, 2017). Temperature is a significant factor in the physiological growth stages of WOSR (Weymann *et al.*, 2015). Climate change is causing global temperatures to rise, which can lead to elongated stem growth in cold-tolerant varieties of WOSR and make them more vulnerable to frost damage in colder regions. According to prediction models, crop yield may be impacted by the state of global climate change, which may also result in changes to agricultural production regions and cropping patterns (Elsgaard *et al.*, 2012). In European WOSR, greater yield deviations were noticed with adverse climatic events than cultivar differences (Nowosad *et al.*, 2016).

Particularly, climatic events such as light intensity, photoperiod, atmospheric temperature, and precipitation are considered crucial influences for crop yield instability during the physiological growth stages (Beszterda and Nogala-Kałucka, 2019; Morrison and Stewart, 2002; Habekotté, 1997). For example, extreme heat and cold during the seed-filling stage have demonstrated significant yield variations in central Europe (Weymann *et al.*, 2015).

#### 2.5 Crop modelling approach and application of crop growth models for WOSR

There are numerous growth models for predicting the production of oilseed rape under various climatic conditions. The Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer (DSSAT) program, which includes dynamic crop growth simulation models for more than 42 crops, is a helpful tool for simulating growth, development, and yield as a function of soil-plant-atmosphere dynamics (Hoogenboom *et al.*, 2019a). The Environmental Policy Integrated Climate (EPIC) is a cropping systems model used to predict the impacts of soil, water, nutrient, and pesticide movements with their combined effects on soil loss, water quality, and crop yields (Williams *et al.*, 1984). Agricultural Policy Environmental Extender (APEX) is a modelling tool that can be divided into relatively homogeneous soil, land use, management, and weather conditions. It includes directing water, sediment, nutrients, and pesticides across compound landscapes and channel systems to the watershed outlet (William, 2002).

The Agricultural Production System sIMulator (APSIM) is a crop growth model that was developed to simulate biophysical processes in agricultural systems. The model can forecast various crop yields based on soil, climate, and crop management variables. The APSIM-Canola module was described and incorporated into the APSIM model by Robertson and Lilley (2016). The BRASNAP-PH model was developed to predict the temperature and photoperiod-related events at the emergence, onset, and end of flowering and maturity of WOSR (Habekotte, 1997). The STICS (Simulateur mulTIdisciplinaire pour les Cultures Standard) model is a dynamic, generic, and robust model aiming to simulate the soil-crop-atmosphere system (the Institut national de la recherche agronomique).

The HERMES model is an agro-ecosystem model that can simulate soil-crop interactions with an emphasis on water and nitrogen-based processes (Kersebaum, 2007; 2011). According to Klik and Eitzinger (2010), the model is robust and able to recreate interannual variability in yields, biomass, and soil processes under a variety of field crop rotations. The HERMES model has the ability to assess mitigation and adaptation strategies as well as forecast changes in agricultural productivity and soil processes under climate change circumstances (Smith and Olesen, 2010). The LINTUL-BRASNAP is a useful tool for identifying the major crop factors that affect leaf area development, flower density, and subsequent photosynthesis during the critical period of seed set in winter oilseed rape (Habekotté, 1997). The HUME-OSR is a process-based model that can simulate physiological processes based on radiation interception (IR) and captures the majority of important processes contributing to crop productivity (Böttcher *et al.*, 2020).

CropSyst (Cropping Systems Simulation Model) is a multi-year, multi-crop, daily time-step crop growth model linked to GIS (Geographic Information System) software. To estimate agro-meteorological variables (Bregaglio *et al.*, 2011) and to evaluate the quality of agricultural products (Cappelli *et al.*, 2014), the CropSyst model was reorganized in the BioMA-Biophysical Model Applications platform (Donatelli *et al.*, 2012) for developing and running biophysical models on generic spatial components to simulate crop development and yield under potential and water-limited environments to estimate crop suitability to the environment (Confalonieri *et al.*, 2013). A few crop parameters, such as date of sowing, genetic coefficients of cultivar, soil profile information (e.g., soil texture, depth), fertilizer and irrigation management, tillage, and atmospheric CO<sub>2</sub> concentration, are required to run the model for simulating the impact of CO<sub>2</sub> concentration on plant growth and yield (Tubiello *et al.*, 2007).

### **3. MATERIALS AND METHODS**

Winter oilseed rape faces changing biotic and abiotic stresses linked to climate change. The proposed objectives, therefore, undertook a novel examination of the dual concept of crop losses and compound climate/weather events during the growing cycle of winter oilseed rape under various soil and climatic conditions. The methodology of the thesis is based on the relationship between climate models and the crop growth model, as well as experimental research tools for predicting the development of the production process of WOSR in response to climate change. A chosen growth model (DSSAT) was utilized to investigate the relationship between the soil, plant, and atmosphere. The results were confirmed through an experiment conducted in the field. The study consists of two scientific research activities:

#### 3.1 Experimental activities

The experiments were carried out in collaboration with the Czech Central Institute for Supervising and Testing in Agriculture (CISTA): the establishment of field trials, detailed monitoring of environmental conditions, growth, development, and yield parameters of WOSR, and the creation of a database to help parameterize crop models. The study was conducted between September and August of 2020-2021 and 2021-2022, respectively, in the Czech Republic in the Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká regions under various soil and climatic conditions (Fig. 3). The following are the general characteristics of the study locations: - Chrastava: The Chrastava study location is considered a warm climatic region with an average altitude of 345 m (above sea level, a.s.l.). The long-term (1961–2021) average temperature and long-term average total precipitation are 8.0 °C and 738 mm, respectively. The soil type at this location is HMI-ph (loamy brown soil-sandy loam soil (light)). Staňkov: The Staňkov study location is a moderately warm climatic region with an average altitude of 370m (a.s.l.). The long-term average temperature and long-term average total precipitation are 8.1 °C and 537 mm, respectively. The soil type is Hmm-h (brown soil typical- clay soil (medium)). Vysoká: The Vysoká study location is a cold region with a longterm average temperature of 7.1 °C and a long-term average precipitation of 611 mm. The average altitude of this location is 580 m (a.s.l.) with the typical soil type LMg-h (Luvism pseudoglea-clay soil (medium)).

To evaluate the response of oilseed rape varieties to compound events, we included crop phenological, yield, and qualitative parameters (beginning and the end of flowering, maturity, lodging, plant length, overwintering, thousand seed weight, yield, and oiliness) in the model. Meteorological conditions during the experimental period in terms of extreme precipitation and temperature anomalies were used as an important site-specific input parameter. At the CISTA experimental stations, the cultivated crops were observed in terms of sowing and harvesting, fertilization (date, amount, and type of fertilizer), yields, above-ground biomass at harvest, soil content of mineral N (Nmin) at different soil depths, and the N content within the above-ground biomass.



Figure 3. Experimental field locations

### **3.2 Selection of WOSR varieties**

Winter oilseed rape is a suitable model crop since it is sensitive to temperature and frost in the cold season of the year, as well as to precipitation and drought during the growing season. This work is a response to the findings of testing the modern WOSR varieties adapted to ongoing changes in both market demands and climatic conditions. The plants were tested for yield, phenological, and quality parameters concerning meteorological factors. To understand and evaluate the responses of WOSR crops to compound weather events, three WOSR varieties were used in this experimental study, namely Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka. The varieties were selected based on their agronomic characteristics (table 1).

Yield and seed quality in dry matter	Architect	Temptation	Sněžka		
Yield (t ha <sup>-1</sup> )	5.1-6.1	5.4-6.1	4.4-6.4		
Crude protein content (%)	19.7	19.3	19.8		
Potential Oil content (@ 9% moisture)	45.0	46.0	44.3		
HTS (g @ 12% humidity)	5.0	4.3	4.6		
Resistance characteristics					
White crucifer rot	5.2	5.1	5.8		
Blacking of crucifer stalk	5.7	6.1	6.4		
Alternaria spotting of crucifers (Black oilseed	6.9	6.9	7.6		
rape)					
Complex root disease of Cruciferous	6.3	6.1	6.4		
Fatty acid composition (% of total fatty acids)					
Saturated fatty acids	5.8	6.2	6.2		
Oleic acid	62.5	65.5	65.2		
Linoleic acid	19.1	17.3	17.4		
Alpha-linolenic acid	9.2	7.7	7.8		
Erucic acid	< 0.05	< 0.05	< 0.05		
Glucosinolate content	15.9	14.7	12.4		

Table 1. Potential agronomic characteristics of the selected WOSR varieties

\*Explanatory notes: 9 = best value, favorable property; 1 = worst value, substandard property; HTS= Thousand seed weight

### ARCHITECT



 The Architect variety is a semi-late pollen-fertile hybrid variety with minimal erucic acid and low glucosinolate content.

- Plants are medium to tall and resistant to lodging before harvest.
- The variety is less to moderately resistant to foma black spot, less to moderately resistant to white rot, moderately resistant to alternaria blight, and moderately resistant to verticillium wilt.
- Seed and oil yields in both warm and cool growing areas are high.
- $\circ$   $\,$  The thousand seed weight ranges from medium to high.
- Seed oil content is moderate to high, and the oil content of fatty acid is standard. Seed N-substance is low to medium-high.

Maintainer:

Limagrain Europe, Biopôle Clermont-Limagne, Rue Henri Mondor, 63360 Saint Beauzire, France

Authorized representative: Limagrain Central Europe S.

#### TEMPTATION



Deutsche Saatveredelung AG, Weissenburger Str. 5, 59557 Lippstadt, Germany

Authorized representative: OSEVA PRO s.r.o., Jankovcova 938/18, 170 37 Prague 7

## • The Temptation variety is a semi-late pollen-fertile hybrid variety with low erucic acid and glucosinolate content.

- The plants are medium-tall and moderately resistant to lodging before harvest.
- The variety is moderately resistant to foma black spot, less resistant to white rot, moderately resistant to alternaria blight, and verticillium wilt.
- Among the hybrid varieties, the seed yield is high, with a higher oil yield.
- Thousand seed weight is low to medium.
- Seed oil content is high and the oil content of the different fatty acids is standard. Seed N-substance is low.

## SNĚŽKA



Maintainer: SEMPRA PRAHA a.s., U topíren 2/860, 170 41 Prague 7

- The Sněžka variety is a semi-late variety with minimal erucic acid and low glucosinolate content.
- Plants are mostly medium-tall and resistant to lodging before harvest.
- The variety is moderately resistant to foma black spot, moderately resistant to white rot, moderately resistant to alternaria blight, and moderately resistant to verticillium wilt.
- Within the range of line varieties, seed and oil yields in both warm and cool growing areas are very high.
- The thousand seed weight is medium-high.
- Seed oil content is moderately high, oil content of individual fatty acids is standard with low to mediumhigh seed N-substance.

#### **3.3 Datasets**

#### Weather data

The weather dataset for the study was collected from three automated meteorological stations of the Czech Hydro-meteorological Institute, namely U2LIBC01 (for Chrastava), L1STAN01 (for Staňkov), and P1PRIB01 (for Vysoká). The geographical coordinates and elevations of the stations for Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká locations are 50° 46' 8.2704" N 15° 1' 27.4692" E (397.72 m a.s.l.), 49° 41' 37.3308" N 14° 0' 57.0132" E (362 m a.s.l.), and 49° 41' 37.3308" N 14° 0' 57.0132" E (555 m a.s.l.) respectively. The weather data collected daily encompassed precipitation (RAIN-mm), maximum air temperature (Tmax-°C), minimum air temperature (Tmin-°C), and solar radiation (SRAD-MJm<sup>-2</sup>day<sup>-1</sup>) weather evaluation and modeling activities. The baseline dataset for the crop model weather input module starts on January 1, 2010, and extends through December 31, 2022. For winter oilseed rape (WOSR) simulation modeling during the experimental years, weather datasets for 2020–2021 (September 2020–July 2021) and 2021–2022 (September 2021–July 2022) were used according to the crop growing seasons. The weather data were incorporated into the WeatherMan module in the DSSAT model (Table 2).

Date	Precipitation	Maximum daily temperature	Minimum daily temperature	Solar radiation		
W_DATE	RAIN	TMAX	TMIN	SRAD		
dd/mm/yyyy	mm	°C	°C	MJm <sup>-2</sup> day <sup>-1</sup>		
01/07/2021	39	18.9	12.4	10.7		
02/07/2021	5.7	18.2	10.8	14.0		
03/07/2021	0.0	22.3	12.8	19.2		
04/07/2021	0.0	23.3	9.0	11.8		
05/07/2021	2.6	22.9	12.3	10.2		
06/07/2021	0.0	26.8	14.2	14.2		
07/07/2021	24.5	19.7	13.6	21.2		
08/07/2021	29.5	21.8	11.0	19.2		
09/07/2021	9.2	22.9	14.4	21.7		
10/07/2021	0.0	23.6	11.9	18.8		

Table 2. Structure of weather data input into the WeatherMan module of the DSSAT prog
---

To quantify non-optimal agroclimatic growing conditions concerning physical and biological stressors, a total of seven agroclimatic indices were calculated. The agroclimatic indices are as follows:

- Heat stress during flowering a 2-day period of maximum temperature above +35 °C from the onset of flowering to the end of flowering.
- Black frost the event is triggered when the Tmin (minimum daily temperature) is equal to or below –18 °C for at least one day with no or very limited snow cover (less than 1 cm of freshly fallen snow).
- Late frost event is triggered when the Tmin is equal to or below –2 °C after the start of a time window determined as the period when the mean air temperature is continuously 10 °C (for at least five days) and does not drop below 10 °C for more than two days in a row.
- Heat stress during grain filling the event is triggered when the Tmax (maximum daily temperature) is above+35 °C for at least two days during the period from flowering to maturity.
- Water logging during seedling and floral bud development the event is triggered if the soil moisture is at or above the field capacity for more than 30 days from sowing to anthesis. Days with a mean temperature below 3 °C are not counted.
- Drought stress during flowering actual water content is less than 40% of plant's available water content for ten consecutive days.
- Adverse sowing conditions event is triggered when there are no more than three days during the sowing window (sowing date±15 days) with the soil moisture in the top layer below 90% but above 5% and rain on the given day is below 5mm and not more than 10mm on the preceding day.

The monthly data were collected based on the long-term monthly mean and for the experimental years. The monthly dataset was processed for temperature and rainfall variations from weather event categorizations (e.g., warm-dry, warm-wet, cold-dry, cold-wet, etc.). For temperature, the deviations were from the long-term monthly mean ( $\Delta$ t=t-tLTM) calculated (mean monthly temperature for the long-term (tLTM) minus mean monthly temperature during the growing season (t)). For rainfall, the monthly percentage of long-term rainfall (r\*) was calculated (total monthly rainfall for the long-term = total monthly rainfall during the growing season × 100). Based on the evaluation of weather conditions from both the growing seasons 2020–2021 and 2021–2022, the two experimental years were

categorized into dry weather conditions (2020–2021) and normal weather conditions (2021–2022) (Table 3).

	Chrastava							
Months	2020-2	021	2021-2022					
Montins	Temperature	Moisture	Temperature	Moisture				
	category	category	category	category				
September	warm	normal	warm	dry				
October	warm	wet	normal	normal				
November	normal	severe dry	normal	normal				
December	severe warm	severe dry	normal	normal				
January	normal	wet	warm	normal				
February	normal	normal	severe warm	severe wet				
March	normal	normal	normal	extreme dry				
April	cold	normal	normal	normal				
May	cold	wet	warm	dry				
June	extreme warm	normal	extreme warm	wet				
July	warm	severe wet	normal	dry				
	Staňkov							
Months	2020-2	021	2021-20	022				
1110111115	Temperature	Moisture	Temperature	Moisture				
	category	category	category	category				
September	normal	normal	warm	severe dry				
October	normal	normal	cold	dry				
November	normal	severe dry	normal	normal				
December	warm	normal	normal	normal				
January	normal	severe wet	warm	normal				
February	normal	wet	severe warm	normal				
March	normal	normal	normal	normal				
April	cold	dry	normal	normal				
May	cold	severe wet	severe wet warm					
June	extreme warm	normal	extreme warm	wet				

Table 3. Evaluation of weather dataset during the growing seasons

normal

July

	Vysoká						
Months	2020-20	021	2021-2022				
WIGHTINS	Temperature	Moisture	Temperature	Moisture			
	category	category	category	category			
September	normal	wet	normal	severe dry			
October	normal	wet	normal	dry			
November	normal	dry	normal	wet			
December	normal	dry	normal	normal			
January	normal	wet	normal	normal			
February	normal	wet	severe warm	dry			
March	normal	normal	normal	normal			
April	extreme cold	normal	cold	normal			
May	severe cold	wet	warm	normal			
June	warm	severe wet	warm	severe wet			
July	cold	wet	normal	normal			

wet

warm

dry

In this study, the current climate conditions in the growing season 2021-2022 (the climate when the field trials were conducted) were considered (Sc1), and the environmental module of the crop model was adjected according to the Representative Concentration Pathway (RCP8.5) was considered as the future scenarios (Sc2) for the period 2021-2040. Under Sc2, the average temperature is projected to increase by +2 °C from the current global average temperature, and the concentration of CO<sub>2</sub> will be increased to 936 ppm, which will double the current global average CO<sub>2</sub> concentration of 421 ppm.

#### **Crop data**

The land preparation of all the locations started by the first week of mid-August to mid- September (autumn), with a plowing depth of 25–30 cm. The sowing of WOSR started 1-2 days after the land preparation at a planting depth of 2 cm. Each experimental plot consists of 10–11 rows with a seed rate for sowing varying from 2.7 to 4.05 kg ha<sup>-1</sup> and a row spacing of 12.5 cm (Fig. 4).



Figure 4. Crop phenological design of the experimental plot

Nitrogen fertilizer was applied as a basal dose by the time of land preparation and by the vegetative growth stage from March to April. To evaluate the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model, the required standard DSSAT files (\*.TMX, \*.TMA, \*.SOL, \*.WTH) for climate, soil, crop growth, management, and yields were collected from all three study locations.

The calibration of a crop model depends on phenological experimental data, which is also essential to integrating portioning. Accordingly, the field data collection for crop physiological analysis started in the first week of November 2020 (1st-year experiment) and 2021 (2nd-year experiment), when the plants were approximately 50–60 days old with an approximate population of 53–65 plants per m<sup>2</sup>. Crop phenology was monitored biweekly using the BBCH scale (Meier *et al.*, 2009). Plant phenology (%) was determined as a ratio of plants recorded within each phenological stage to the total number of plants in the experimental field. Leaf area was calculated by infrared image analysis using Adobe Photoshop software (raw images were taken by infrared photographs with an 8-megapixel resolution). The fresh weight and dry weight (oven at 105 °C) of the biomass partitioning (leaf, stem, and genetic part) of the sample plant were taken. Crop management data for WOSR varieties, such as sowing date, anthesis day, first fruit set day, harvest maturity day, and leaf area index, were obtained during the growing seasons from the experimental locations (Table 4). The field preparation began in late August. The final harvest occurred in early September.

Davamatava		CHT			STV			VYS	
r ai ameter s	ART	TEM	SNK	ART	TEM	SNK	ART	TEM	SNK
Flowering date (days after planting)	247	242	244	246	240	242	244	246	243
Plant height (m)	1.58	1.49	1.47	1.40	1.38	1.27	1.39	1.40	1.41
Yield (t ha <sup>-1</sup> )	5.12	5.63	4.40	5.11	5.41	4.93	6.15	6.13	6.40
Leaf Area Index, maximum (LAI <sub>max</sub> )	2.84	3.39	2.58	3.54	2.68	2.86	3.10	3.43	2.94
First pod formation date (days after planting)	251	250	254	250	248	253	251	253	250
Harvest maturity date (days after planting)	321	320	320	319	317	316	332	331	330
Seed yield (kg ha <sup>-1</sup> )	3.45	2.79	4.04	3.45	2.79	4.04	3.45	2.79	4.04
Seed oil content (%)	49.29	51.31	49.08	49.29	51.31	49.08	49.29	51.31	49.08
Thousand seed weight (g)	4.33	3.58	4.31	4.09	3.66	4.16	4.72	4.23	4.39
Harvest date (days after	325	323	327	322	320	321	335	334	335
planting)									

Table 4. Crop management dataset for calculation of growth coefficient for oilseed rape varieties

\*CHT-Chrastava; STV-Staňkov; VYS-Vysoká; DAP-Days After Planting; LAI-Leaf Area Index

#### Soil data

The soil data from the experimental sites were collected from the field based on the soil layer depths (10 cm each up to 60 cm) by using the soil standard sampling materials and keeping the soil samples in airtight zip bags and soil cores for laboratory analysis. The physical property analysis of the soil sample was done by the textural group categorization based on the particle's combination (percentage of clay, silt, and sand) and then organized the textural groups (e.g., loam, sandy loam, etc.) using the Soil Textural Calculator by the USDA. The hydro-physiological properties were calculated by using chemical analysis of the core soil samples, and specific soil parameters (lower limit, drained upper limit, saturation, drainage coefficient, and runoff curve number) were estimated from the measurement of the soil profile (Table 5). The soil profiles for Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká sites were characterized as loamy brown soil-sandy loam soil (light), brown soil typical-clay soil (medium), and Luvism pseudoglea-clay soil (medium), respectively. The input for the soil module (SBuild) includes data on the composition of the soil, such as the percentages of clay, silt, and sand particles, as well as the amount of organic carbon present. Other parameters include the cation exchange capacity, pH level, slope of the land, albedo (reflectivity), color, drainage, drained upper limit (DUL), total soil nitrogen content, lower limit (LL), saturated water content (SAT), hydraulic conductivity, bulk density, root growth factor (SRGF), and soil fertility factor (SLPF) (Jones et al., 2003).

Layer Depth (cm)	Clay %			Silt %			Sand %			Bulk density (g cm <sup>-3</sup> )			
	СНТ	STV	VYS	СНТ	STV	VYS	СНТ	STV	VYS	СНТ	STV	VYS	
0-10	10.90	17.42	19.3	38.91	46.58	40.88	50.19	36.00	39.76	1.60	1.58	1.63	
10-20	10.89	13.95	17.8	40.73	12.43	23.52	48.38	73.62	58.63	1.52	1.45	1.52	
20-30	16.03	17.57	19.8	14.58	35.56	36.29	69.39	46.87	43.89	1.63	1.55	1.70	
30-40	13.88	19.14	22.2	71.43	35.69	37.56	14.69	45.17	40.23	1.48	1.56	1.72	
40-50	23.09	20.07	23.2	43.59	32.77	34.53	33.32	47.16	42.28	1.64	1.58	1.70	
50-60	19.06	21.67	23.7	34.04	31.86	28.91	46.9	46.47	47.35	1.70	1.58	1.62	
Layer Depth		Corg (	%)		pH in water				CEC (cmol kg <sup>-1</sup> )				
(cm)	СНТ	ST	V	VYS	CHT	STV	VYS	C	HT	STV		VYS	
0-10	2.47	1.6	55	1.81	7.88	6.85	7.09	21	.05	18.11		18.74	
10-20	2.36	1.6	54	1.78	7.61	6.40	6.71	21	.23	18.02		18.88	
20-30	2.24	1.6	51	1.76	7.85	6.29	6.91	20	.96	18.11		19.86	
30-40	2.55	2.0	)5	2.91	7.97	6.81	7.52	20	.96	17.93		19.78	
40-50	2.49	2.0	04	2.22	8.18	7.10	7.69	20	.96	17.48		18.92	
50-60	2.46	2.0	00	2.16	8.22	7.03	7.18	20	.87	17.57		17.92	

Table 5. Selected soil parameters for the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model from the experimental locations

Layer Depth	Ta	otal N (%)	)	L	L (cm <sup>3</sup> cm	-3)	DUL (cm <sup>3</sup> cm <sup>-3</sup> )			
(cm)	CHT	STV	VYS	CHT	STV	VYS	СНТ	STV	VYS	
0-10	0.13	0.09	0.10	0.25	0.18	0.19	0.36	0.32	0.33	
10-20	0.10	0.12	0.13	0.25	0.17	0.18	0.35	0.33	0.34	
20-30	0.11	0.11	0.12	0.25	0.17	0.19	0.36	0.31	0.34	
30-40	0.14	0.09	0.10	0.26	0.19	0.21	0.36	0.28	0.31	
40-50	0.13	0.09	0.10	0.26	0.19	0.20	0.34	0.29	0.31	
50-60	0.11	0.11	0.11	0.26	0.18	0.18	0.35	0.34	0.35	

<sup>\*</sup>CHT-Chrastava; STV-Staňkov; VYS-Vysoká; Corg-organic carbon; CEC-cation exchange capacity; Total N-total nitrogen; LL-lower limit of available water to plant; DUL-drained upper limit or field capacity

#### Soil Water Index (SWI) for soil moisture balance

The Soil Water Index (SWI) quantifies the moisture status at different depths in the soil (equation 1). The amount of precipitation that infiltrates the soil through the infiltration process determines the soil moisture content. It is a very heterogeneous variable that is influenced, especially on a small scale, by soil properties and the type of drainage system (Herbert *et al.*, 2020). The SWI determination is as follows:

$$SWI(t_n) = \frac{\sum_i^n SSM(t_i)e^{\frac{t_n - t_i}{T}}}{\sum_i^n e^{\frac{t_n - t_i}{T}}} for \ t_i \le t_n$$
(1)

In the equation,  $t_n$  is the observation time of the current measurement, and  $t_i$  is the observation time of the previous measurements. Surface soil moisture (SSM) refers to the relative water content of the topsoil (up to a few centimeters), and it plays a significant role in the water and heat fluxes between the earth's surface and the atmosphere that control temperature and humidity (Montzka *et al.*, 2021). The health of the vegetation depends on the surface soil moisture, which is sensitive to environmental conditions like precipitation, temperature, and solar radiation. SSM thus serves as a key player in the global water, energy, and carbon cycles as well as an indicator of climatic conditions and a driver of regional weather and climate (Rasheed *et al.*, 2022).

#### 3.4 Crop modelling activities

The Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer (DSSAT) is a software application consisting of dynamic plant growth simulation models over 42 different crops (Fig. 5). DSSAT is supported by a variety of features and apps for meteorology, soils, genetics, crop management, experimental observational data, and sample datasets for all crop models. These simulation programs can model growth, development, and yield as a function of soil, plant, and atmospheric dynamics (Hoogenboom *et al.*, 2019a).



Figure 5. Main components and modular framework of DSSAT program

### Oilseed crop model (CSM-CROPGRO-Canola) in DSSAT program

The CSM-CROPGRO model was developed as a genetic strategy for modeling to predict the growth and yield of different crops. Crop-specific ecotypes, species, and cultivar attributes are included in the model for simulating the growth and yield parameters based on the input dataset. Saseendran *et al.* (2010) first adapted the CSM-CROPGRO model based on the fava bean (*Vicia faba* L.) module to simulate canola parameters. Initially, N fixation issues were having problems simulating the proper nutrient management systems with the model. Later, using an experimental dataset of Mediterranean-grown soybeans (*Glycine max* L. Merr.), the nutrient management problem was solved utilizing model input data management (Deligios *et al.*, 2013). The CSM-CROPGRO model was adapted with the Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer (DSSAT v4.6) to simulate crop parameters (Deligios *et al.*, 2013). The CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model in DSSAT is currently a useful tool for modeling canola growth and yield globally to evaluate crop

responses to various environments, particularly under climate change (Jones *et al.*, 2003). The CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model was calibrated and evaluated using the observed data of Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka varieties from Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká study locations. To successfully run the model, four types of data sets were used: 1. crop management data (e.g., land preparation, sowing, irrigation, fertilizer, phenological stages, harvest, yield, etc.); 2. weather data (e.g., experimental location-specific daily maximum and minimum air temperature (°C), total precipitation (mm), solar radiation (MJm<sup>-2</sup>day<sup>-1</sup>); 3. soil data (e.g., physical and chemical properties by layers); and 4. genetic data (e.g., variety-specific parameters, growth and development stages) (Fig. 6). Based on the input dataset, the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model can simulate yields, biomass, leaf area index (LAI), and oiliness parameters for both current and projected climate conditions (Hoogenboom *et al.*, 2019b).



Figure 6. Simplified input (A) and output (B) components of CSM-CROPGRO model

#### **Evaluation of crop simulation model**

Crop model calibration is the process of comparing the observed and simulated values to confirm the acceptable estimates of the model outputs. Crop models require variety-specific genetic coefficients to simulate the performance of diverse genotypes under different soil, weather, and management conditions (crop growth, development, and grain production). The evaluation of the calibration outputs of different crop simulation models needs to operate in different ways. The performance statistic used in this study was the root mean square error (RMSE), which was calculated using equation (2). A lower RMSE value means smaller differences between simulated and observed values.

$$RMSE = \sqrt{\frac{\sum_{i=1}^{n} (\hat{Y}_i - Y_i)^2}{n}}$$
(2)

where  $Y_i$  = observed value,  $\widehat{Y}_i$  = simulated value, n = number of observations
# 4. **RESULTS**

The experimental results are based on the observation and evaluation of growth parameters in normal temperature and humidity conditions in 2020-2021 and in hot and alternating humidity conditions in 2021-2022. The sowing and wintering period in 2020-2021 in Chrastava took place under very warm and dry conditions, while the Staňkov and Vysoká locations had normal temperature and precipitation conditions. The beginning of flowering took place in Chrastava with cold and wet conditions, but for the Staňkov site, it was cold and dry. However, Vysoká had extremely cold and normal precipitation conditions. The phenological phase of seed formation took place in extremely warm and normal precipitation conditions for the Chrastava and Staňkov localities, while for Vysoká it was warm and very humid. In the case of seed maturity, Chrastava faced warm and very humid conditions; in Staňkov, the weather conditions were normal and slightly humid. In the case of the Vysoká location, the weather conditions were cold and slightly humid. In 2020–2021, both Vysoká and Staňkov locations experienced normal weather conditions for approximately 70% of the total growing season from September to March. In Chrastava, however, a greater fluctuation of weather was recorded, from slightly warm to strongly warm, with slightly cool and humid conditions. In the 2021–2022 growing season, moderate to strong heat prevailed at all three trial locations for approximately 50% of the total growing season. However, the precipitation conditions at the Chrastava site showed 60% of extreme events, when strongly dry conditions prevailed during the sowing, flowering, and maturity stages. While at the Staňkov and Vysoká locations, strongly dry conditions prevailed during the sowing and emergence periods, and slightly wet conditions during the maturity period.

### 4.1 Application of the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model

### **Estimation of WOSR genetic coefficients**

The crop management data from sowing to harvest (phenological and yield attributes) were organized from the experimental locations to prepare the genetic coefficients for all three selected varieties. The potential datasets required for genetic coefficient preparation for WOSR varieties in CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model are given in Table 6.

Cultivar	Definitions	Testing		librated values			
parameters	Definitions	range	Architect	Temptation	Sněžka		
EM-FL	Time between plant emergence and flower appearance (R1) (photothermal days)	18-48	38.5	36.0	37.5		
FL-SH	Time between first flower and first pod (R3) (photothermal days)	10-20	15.5	15.0	14.5		
FL-SD	Time between first flower and first seed (R5) (photothermal days)	15-35	28.5	29.0	26.0		
SD-PM	Time between first seed (R5) and physiological maturity (R7) (photothermal days)	20-38	28.5	27.0	25.5		
FL-LF	Time between first flower (R1) and end of leaf expansion (photothermal days)	0.8-4.0	2.00	2.00	1.80		
LFMAX	Maximum leaf photosynthesis rate at 30 °C, 350 ppm CO <sub>2</sub> , and high light (mg CO <sub>2</sub> m <sup>-2</sup> -s)	1-2.5	1.20	1.30	1.10		
SLAVR	Specific leaf area of cultivar under standard growth conditions (cm <sup>2</sup> /g)	180- 350	300	296	285		
SIZLF	Maximum size of full leaf (three leaflets) (cm <sup>2</sup> )	80-150	107.0	108.0	106.0		
XFRT	Maximum fraction of daily growth that is partitioned to seed + shell	0.8-1.5	1.00	1.00	1.00		
WTPSD	Maximum weight per seed (g)	0.002- 0.006	0.004	0.004	0.003		
SFDUR	Seed filling duration for pod cohort at standard growth conditions (photothermal days)	15-28	20.0	20.0	20.0		
SDPDV	Average seed per pod under standard growing conditions (#/pod)	12-25	21.0	22.0	20.0		
PODUR	load under optimal conditions (photothermal	6-15	10.0	10.0	10.0		
THRSH	The maximum ratio of (seed/(seed+shell)) at maturity. Causes seed to stop growing as their dry weights increase until shells are filled in a cohort. (Threshing percentage).	65-95	81.0	81.1	81.0		
SDPRO	Fraction protein in seeds (g(protein)/g(seed))	0.15- 0.28	0.240	0.242	0.235		
SDLIP	Fraction oil in seeds (g(oil)/g(seed))	30-58	0.480	0.490	0.470		
Ecotype	Definitions	Testing	Ca	librated value	8		
parameters	Definitions	range	Architect	Temptation	Sněžka		
PL-EM	Time between planting and emergence (V0) (thermal days)	1.2-5.8	3.80	3.72	3.61		
EM-V1	Time required from emergence to first true leaf (V1), thermal days	3-10	6.7	6.0	6.1		
V1-JU	Time required from first true leaf to end of juvenile phase, thermal days	0.0-0.8	0.6	0.4	0.5		
JU-R0	minimum number of days for floral induction under optimal temperature and daylengths, photothermal days	2-8	5.0	5.2	5.1		
R7-R8	Time between physiological (R7) and harvest maturity (R8) (days)	2-18	9.0	10.0	8.5		
RWDTH	Relative width of this ecotype in comparison to the standard width per node (YVSWH)	0.3-1.5	1.0	1.0	1.0		
RHGHT	Relative height of this ecotype in comparison to the standard height per node (YVSHT)	0.5-2.5	1.2	1.0	1.0		

Table 6. Parameters finalization during the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model calibration

### Model assessment based on simulated and observed LAI

The comparison between simulated and observed LAI values provided insights into the reliability of the model in predicting LAI dynamics throughout the crop growing season 2020–2021 (Fig. 7). The agreement between the simulated and observed LAI values suggests that the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model was successfully calibrated for accurately predicting LAI for the three WOSR varieties. The model performance statistics further support this conclusion, indicating the reliability of the simulated LAI values.



Figure 7. CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model assessment based on the observed and simulated leaf area index

The model calibration for the Architect variety performed well, with an  $R^2$  value of 0.82 and an RMSE value of 0.36. These numbers showed low model prediction errors and a fair amount of correlation between the simulated and observed LAI values.

This suggested that the LAI dynamics of the Architect variety were accurately captured by the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model throughout the growth season. The model calibration also demonstrated respectable performance statistics for the Temptation variety, with an R<sup>2</sup> value of 0.94 and an RMSE value of 0.26. The Temptation variety's simulated and observed LAI values showed a great connection and little mistakes, as demonstrated by the high R<sup>2</sup> and low RMSE values. Throughout the growing season, the LAI dynamics of this variety were precisely predicted by the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model. With an R<sup>2</sup> value of 0.84 and an RMSE value of 0.29, the calibration of the Sněžka variety likewise showed a significant degree of agreement between simulated and observed LAI. These values also showed a strong correlation in the model predictions for the Sněžka variety.

The CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model accurately captured the LAI dynamics of this variety, suggesting its reliability in predicting LAI for the Sněžka variety during the growing season. However, in the case of the Architect and Sněžka varieties, the model underestimated LAI values only at the end of the vegetative phase, specifically during seed maturity. This might be attributed to certain factors that were not fully accounted for in the model, such as varietal-specific characteristics or environmental conditions during that particular phase. The comparison of simulated and observed LAI values for the three WOSR varieties suggested that the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model performed well in accurately predicting LAI dynamics during the growing season. These results provide a valuable understanding of the growth and development of WOSR crops and can contribute to better management practices for optimizing crop yield and quality.

## 4.2 Model assessment based on simulated and observed seed yield and seed oil content

The CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model underestimated yields under normal weather conditions compared to the actual observed yields from all three locations for the Architect. The performance agreement between observed and simulated yields from the Chrastava location (RMSE = 0.26 t ha<sup>-1</sup>) under normal weather conditions was used to calibrate the model for Architect. Under dry weather conditions, the model overestimated yields from Chrastava and Vysoká, while it underestimated yields at Staňkov.

For Temptation under normal weather conditions, the model showed good agreement in performance (RMSE =  $0.04 \text{ t ha}^{-1}$ ) between observed and simulated yields at Chrastava. This performance result was used to calibrate the model for this variety. However, in dry weather conditions, the model overestimated simulated yields at all three locations. For Sněžka, the model overestimated yields compared to observed yields at Chrastava under normal weather conditions, but at Staňkov the model showed a good agreement of performance between simulated and observed yields (RMSE=0.07 t ha<sup>-1</sup>), which was used to calibrate the model for this variety (Table 7). Under dry weather conditions, the model overestimated simulated simulated at all three locations. Overall, model performance was variable across varieties and locations, and the model tended to overestimate yields under dry weather conditions rather than under normal weather conditions.

Experimental	Variater	Veer	Yields
locations	variety	Year –	RMSE (t ha <sup>-1</sup> )
	Arabitaat	2021	+0.80
	Architect	2022	-0.26
Chroaterie	Tomatotion	2021	+0.15
Chirastava	remptation	2022	+0.04
	Sněžleo	2021	+0.91
	Shezka	2022	+0.35
	Architact	2021	-0.18
	Architect	2022	-0.34
Stažlar	Tomatation	2021	+0.10
Stalikov	remptation	2022	-0.38
	Spěžko	2021	+1.22
	SHCZKA	2022	-0.07
	Arabitaat	2021	+0.93
	Architect	2022	-1.20
Vygolsó	Tomptotion	2021	+0.95
vysoka	remptation	2022	-0.59
	Sněžko	2021	+0.72
	ысека	2022	-1.29

Table 7. Evaluation of the simulated CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model against observed seed yield

The model consistently underestimated the seed oil content of all varieties from all locations under normal and dry weather conditions. For Architect, the model underestimated

the simulated seed oil content at Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká under normal weather conditions by 5.26%, 2.37%, and 1.18%, respectively. However, under dry weather conditions, the model underestimated the seed oil content by approximately 3% at all locations. Temptation at Vysoká showed a good agreement in performance between observed and simulated seed oil content (0.67%) under normal weather conditions. In contrast, at Staňkov and Chrastava, the simulated seed oil content was underestimated by the model between 3.36 % and 6.10 %. In dry weather, the model underestimated the seed oil content at Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká by 4.21 %, 3.08 %, and 2.89 %, respectively. For Sněžka, the best agreement of model performance was evaluated at Vysoká under normal weather conditions, where the model underestimated the simulated seed oil content by 1.19% compared to the observed values. At the Staňkov and Chrastava locations, the model showed slightly higher deviations of 2.73 and 5.94%, respectively (Table 8). However, under dry weather conditions, the model underestimated the simulated seed oil content of all three experimental locations by a reasonably constant amount.

Experimental	Variates	Veee	Seed oil content
locations	variety	rear —	RMSE (%)
	Architact	2021	-3.15
	Architect	2022	-5.26
Chrostova	Tomptation	2021	-4.21
Cillastava	remptation	2022	-6.10
	Spěžlio	2021	-5.03
	SHEZKA	2022	-5.94
	Arabitaat	2021	-2.85
	Architect	2022	-2.37
Stažlary	Tomatation	2021	-3.08
Stankov	remptation	2022	-3.36
	Spěžleo	2021	-4.04
	SHEZKA	2022	-2.73
	Austritant	2021	-2.21
	Arcmitect	2022	-1.18
Vkraalsá	Tomatation	2021	-2.89
vysoka	remptation	2022	-0.67
	Spěžlio	2021	-4.99
	эпеzка	2022	-1.19

Table 8. Evaluation	of the simulated CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model a	against ob	served	seed
oil content				

# 4.3 Evaluation of simulated and observed yield and seed oil content of WOSR under different climatic conditions

Under the dry conditions (2020-2021), the observed yields for the Architect variety from Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká locations were 4.26 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 4.51 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 4.24 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively, while the simulated yields were 5.07 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 4.33 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 5.17 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively. The observed yields for Temptation ranged from 3.85 t ha<sup>-1</sup> to 5.84 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, while simulated yields ranged from 4.47 t ha<sup>-1</sup> to 5.94 t ha<sup>-1</sup> at all experimental locations (Fig. 8). Moreover, the observed yields for the Sněžka variety were 4.17 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 4.41 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 4.23 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, while the simulated yields were 5.08 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 5.65 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 4.95 t ha<sup>-1</sup> (Fig. 8).



Figure 8. Observed and simulated yields of winter rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season. Yield is expressed as dry biomass per hectare (t ha<sup>-1</sup>)

Under normal weather conditions (2021-2022), the observed yields for the Architect variety from Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká locations were 5.12 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 5.11 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 6.15 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively, while the simulated yields were 4.86 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 4.77 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 4.95 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively (Fig. 9).

The observed yields of Temptation ranged from 5.41 t ha<sup>-1</sup> to 6.13 t ha<sup>-1</sup> at all experimental locations, while simulated yields ranged from 5.03 t ha<sup>-1</sup> to 5.63 t ha<sup>-1</sup> at all experimental locations. Under normal weather conditions, the observed yields for the variety Sněžka were 4.40 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 4.93 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 6.40 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, while the simulated yields were 4.75 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 4.86 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 5.10 t ha<sup>-1</sup> (Fig. 9).



Figure 9. Observed and simulated yields of winter rape varieties for the 2021-2022 growing season. Yield is expressed as dry biomass per hectare (t ha<sup>-1</sup>)

Both observed and simulated yields were lower under drought compared to normal weather. However, in both years, the model underestimated simulated yields compared to the corresponding observed yields. In the case of seed oil content, under dry weather conditions, the observed oil content of Architect seeds from Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká was 49.29%, 49.36%, and 48.18%, while the simulated seed oil content was 46.14%, 46.51%, and 45.97% (Fig. 10). Under normal conditions, the observed seed oil content ranged from 43.88% to 48.84% at all experimental locations, while the simulated seed oil content ranged from 43.58% to 45.06% at all experimental locations (Fig. 11).

For the Temptation variety, the observed seed oil content ranged from 48.30% to 51.31%, while the simulated seed oil content ranged from 45.41% to 47.10% at all experimental locations under dry conditions (Fig. 10).



Figure 10. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2020-2021 growing season

During normal conditions, the observed oil content of seeds of the variety Temptation from Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká was 50.36%, 47.06%, and 44.80%, while the simulated oil content of seeds was 44.26%, 43.70%, and 45.47% (Fig. 11). Under dry weather conditions, the observed oil content of seeds of the variety Sněžka in Chrastava was 49.08%, 47.58%, and 47.52% in Staňkov and Vysoká, respectively, while the simulated seed oil contents were 44.05%, 43.54%, and 42.53%, respectively (Fig. 10). During the growing season 2021-2022, the observed seed oil contents were 48.08%, 44.78%, and 42.17%, respectively, while the simulated seed oil contents were 42.14%, 42.06%, and 43.36%, respectively (Fig. 11). However, the observed values for all varieties were relatively higher in the Vysoká location compared to the Chrastava and Staňkov locations.



Figure 11. Observed and simulated seed oil contents of winter oilseed rape varieties for the 2021-2022 growing season

## 4.4 Risk of compound events to quantify the vulnerability of WOSR production

The results demonstrate that all three locations are sensitive to climate change impacts, and we anticipate significant changes in the occurrence of these compound events on WOSR. Three major events were analyzed here, namely, heat stress, black frost, and water logging conditions (Table 9). The findings reveal that climate change impacts are affecting all three locations, leading to notable changes in compound events under climate scenario RCP8.5 for the periods 2021–2040 and 2041–2060.

The occurrence of heat stress is expected to increase during both flowering and grainfilling periods in all regions. The most significant increase is assumed under the hot and humid scenario. Particularly, the Staňkov location experienced heat stress events during grain filling in 2015 and 2019. The analysis projected that heat stress during flowering remains minimal across all regions, while heat stress during grain filling is anticipated to rise significantly (Table 9). This increase varies from 27.69% in Chrastava to 46.15% in Staňkov. The hot and wet scenario is expected to encounter an increasing number of heat stress occurrences, reaching 30% in Chrastava, 30.9% in Vysoká, and 49.6% in Staňkov by 2041–2060 (Table 10). Across the observation period, Vysoká had the lowest risk for heat stress during both flowering and grain-filling stages, while Staňkov demonstrated the highest risk for heat stress during flowering.

Among the compound events studied, the black frost occurrence demonstrates spatial and temporal variations. Mostly, the cold and dry conditions are associated with increased black frost events, while the hot and wet scenario leads to a decline. Examining meteorological data from 2010 to 2022, all three stations experienced black frost occurrences. Chrastava, for instance, recorded black frost for 7 days in 2011. Staňkov had occurrences in 2011, 2016, and 2020, each spanning 4 days. Vysoká observed black frost for 4 days in 2011 (Table 9). For black frost occurrences, Chrastava faces a risk of 30.77%, Staňkov 23.08%, and Vysoká 17.69%. While Chrastava might experience a slight increase to 30.9% by 2041–2060 under the hot and wet scenario, Staňkov could see a decrease of up to 19%. Conversely, the cold and dry scenario could raise black frost occurrences to 26%. Vysoká, under the hot and wet scenario, is projected to have a decrease of 13% by 2041–2060 (Table 10). During the observation period, Vysoká had the lowest risk for black frost, while Chrastava had the highest risk.

Events (Chrastava)	Criteria	Growth stages	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022
Heat stress during flowering	Tmax> 35 °C at least for 2 days	Beginning to end of flowering	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Heat stress during grain filling	Tmax >35 °C at least for 2 days Tmin<-18 °C at least	Flowering to maturity	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Black frost	for 1 day + less than 1 cm of snow cover	Dormant season	1	7	0	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Water logging during seeding and floral bud development	Soil moisture is at or above the filed capacity for more than 30 days from sowing to anthesis	Seedling and floral bud development	49	49	28	49	35	49	49	35	70	56	35	35	35
Events (Staňkov)	Criteria	Growth stages	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022
Heat stress during flowering	Tmax> 35 °C at least for 2 days	Beginning to end of flowering	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Heat stress during grain filling	Tmax >35 °C at least for 2 days Tmin $\leq 18$ °C at least	Flowering to maturity	1	0	0	1	1	4	0	0	0	2	0	0	1
Black frost	for 1 day + less than 1 cm of snow cover	Dormant season	0	4	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	4	0	0
Water logging during seeding and floral bud development	Soil moisture is at or above the filed capacity for more than 30 days from sowing to anthesis	Seedling and floral bud development	42	42	21	35	28	42	35	35	49	56	35	28	28
Events (Vysoká)	Criteria	Growth stages	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022
Heat stress during	Tmax> 35 °C at least	Beginning to end	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	

42

Table 9. Occurrence of compound risk events on WOSR for observation period 2010-2022 (cases/number of days)

Events (Vysoká)	Criteria	Growth stages	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021	2022
Heat stress during	Tmax> 35 °C at least	Beginning to end	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
flowering	for 2 days	of flowering	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Heat stress during	Tmax >35 °C at least	Flowering to	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
grain filling	for 2 days	maturity	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	Tmin<-18 °C at least														
Black frost	for 1 day + less than 1	Dormant season	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	cm of snow cover														
Water logging	Soil moisture is at or														
during seeding and	above the filed capacity	Seedling and floral	21	40	21	28	14	21	35	28	42	35	21	21	21
floral bud	for more than 30 days	bud development	21	47	<b>41</b>	20	14	<b>∠1</b>	55	20	42	55	<i>∠</i> 1	<i>4</i> 1	<b>∠1</b>
development	from sowing to anthesis														

Water logging during seedling and floral bud development is expected to increase under the hot and wet scenario and decrease under the cold and dry scenario. Based on the meteorological data from 2010 to 2022, the occurrence of water logging is evident, with Chrastava experiencing the highest instances of high soil moisture content (99–100% SWI) during these stages (Table 9). This situation persisted for most of the observation period, indicating susceptibility to water logging. Staňkov and Vysoká had fewer occurrences. Concerning water logging events, the Chrastava location showed a high risk of about 32.31% during 2021–2040, but this concern is expected to decrease across all regions between 2041 and 2060. The cold and dry scenario indicates the most significant reduction, with Chrastava decreasing to 17% by 2041–2060. For Staňkov and Vysoká, the declines will be up to 12% and 4.5%, respectively (Table 10). Among the studied events, Vysoká had the lowest risk of water logging during seedling and floral bud development, while Chrastava had the highest risk. Converting the number of cases for each risk into percentages allows us to determine the relative frequency or risk of occurrence (Table 10).

	Risk of occurrence			RCP 8.5 (	Chrastav	ra)		
Diale avanta	(%) for the		2021-20	)40		2041-20	)60	
KISK EVENUS	observation period 2010-2022	MPI3	MPI1	MOHC2	MPI3	MPI1	MOHC2	
Heat stress during flowering	0.0	0.5	0.0	0.5	0.75	0.0	1.5	
Heat stress during grain filling	27.7	28.0	27.1	30.0	35.0	32.0	38.0	
Black frost	30.8	31.0	33.0	30.9	30.0	36.0	28.0	
Water logging during seeding and floral bud development	32.3	26.0	21.0	32.0	17.0	11.0	24.0	
•	Risk of occurrence			RCP 8.5 (	Staňkov	7)		
D.1	(%) for the		2021-20	)40	2041-2060			
Risk events	observation period 2010-2022	MPI3	MPI1	MOHC2	MPI3	MPI1	MOHC2	
Heat stress during flowering	0.0	0.75	0.0	1.0	1.5	0.75	2.5	
Heat stress during grain filling	46.1	47.0	46.0	49.5	53.0	51.5	55.0	
Black frost	23.1	22.8	24.5	21.5	21.0	26.0	19.0	
Water logging during seeding and floral bud development	24.2	20.0	16.0	23.0	12.0	8.0	17.0	

Table 10. Projection of risk compound events occurrence on WOSR for the periods 2021-2040 and 2041-2060 under RCP8.5

	Risk of occurrence			RCP 8.5	(Vysoká	i)				
Rick events	(%) for the	he 2021-2040				2041-2060				
NISK EVENIS	observation period 2010-2022	MPI3	MPI1	MOHC2	MPI3	MPI1	MOHC2			
Heat stress during flowering	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.7	1.0	0.5	1.5			
Heat stress during grain filling	27.7	28.0	27.1	30.0	35.0	32.0	38.0			
Black frost	17.7	17.0	19.0	16.5	15.5	22.0	13.0			
Water logging during seeding and floral bud development	10.8	8.0	6.0	10.0	4.5	3.0	7.0			

\*MPI3- median (mean estimate) MPI1- cold and dry MOHC2- hot and wet

By analyzing meteorological data for the period 2010–2022, for Chrastava, Staňkov, and Vysoká stations, we determined the frequency of occurrence of different meteorological risk phenomena during that period (Fig. 12).





Based on the impact assessment of the CEs, we also categorized the yearly yield performance of WOSR production with profit and loss during 2020–2021 in the Czech Republic using statistical indicators (Table 11).

Table 11. Impact assessment of compound events on WOSR using various statistical indicators (profit and loss) during 2000-2021 in the Czech Republic

Indicators (WOSR)	Years
Profit	2004, 2009, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
Loss	2002, 2003, 2011, 2012, 2017, 2019, 2020, 2021

The regression analysis of the residual yield outputs is presented as maps using the profit and loss assessment of the WOSR production from all regions of the Czech Republic to illustrate the annual agroclimatic drivers (Fig. 13).



Figure 13. Compound events on residual yield performance of WOSR in the Czech Republic

# **4.5** Evaluation of WOSR varieties based on simulated yield attributes under current and projected climate scenarios

The DSSAT-CROPGRO model has an integrated "Environmental Module" that can be adjusted to projected climate changes such as air temperature, precipitation, and  $CO_2$ concentration (Potopová et al., 2023a). The study investigated the optimum growth and yield parameters for three winter rape varieties at three experimental locations under climate scenarios (Sc1) and (Sc2). The model simulated the highest maximum leaf area index (LAImax) for Temptation at all three experimental locations according to Sc1, while the Architect variety had the lowest LAImax. However, the Sněžka variety had the highest LAImax, and the Architect had the lowest LAImax under the Sc2 scenario. The Chrastava location showed the lowest LAImax, while the Vysoká location had the highest LAImax under both Sc1 and Sc2 scenarios (Fig. 14). Overall, the study showed that the varieties Temptation (Sc1) and Sněžka (Sc2) had the highest LAImax, while the variety Architect presented the lowest value in both scenarios. Under the conditions of scenario Sc1, the Temptation variety showed the highest simulated maximum LAI, ranging from 3.69 to 4.78 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup> across all three experimental locations (Fig. 14). However, during Sc2, the Sněžka variety showed the highest simulated maximum LAI among all three varieties, ranging from 3.73 to 3.84 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup>. The Architect variety showed the worst simulated maximum LAI according to Sc2 at the Chrastava location as 2.94 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup>.



Figure 14. Simulated maximum leaf area index (LAImax) under current climate conditions for the field trials (Sc1) and the projected climate scenario (Sc2) for RCP8.5

Under scenario Sc1, the Temptation variety showed the highest simulated dry seed yields, ranging from 5.03 to 5.64 t ha<sup>-1</sup> across all three experimental locations (Fig. 15). In contrast, the lowest simulated yield was found with the Architect variety. Under Sc2, the Sněžka variety performed the highest simulated yields among all three varieties, varying from 3.98 to 4.21 t ha<sup>-1</sup>. The Architect variety showed the worst simulated seed yield according to Sc2 at the Chrastava location (3.88 t ha<sup>-1</sup>).



Figure 15. Simulated winter oilseed rape yields under current and future climate scenarios

Under scenario Sc1, the Temptation variety showed the highest simulated seed oil content, ranging from 43.70 to 45.47% in all experimental locations. Under Sc1, Sněžka and Architect varieties had intermediate seed oil content from 42.05 to 43.36% and 43.58 to 45.06%, respectively. However, under scenario Sc2, the highest seed oil content was 37.35 to 38.35% with the Temptation variety. However, Sněžka and Architect showed lower seed oil contents ranging from 36.21 to 37.27 and 35.93 to 36.69%, respectively (Fig. 16). The results also showed that the highest seed oil content was found at the Vysoká location, while the lowest seed oil content was found at Chrastava (Fig. 16).



Figure 16. Simulated seed oil content under current and future climate scenarios

# 5. DISCUSSION

The CSM-CROPGRO model used in this study was tested and has been peerreviewed in a scientific journal, which justified the validation and acceptance of the model used under the Czech Republic field conditions (Muntean *et al.*, 2021). Furthermore, the findings of the research were published as a practical, certified methodology approved by the Central Institute for Supervising and Testing in Agriculture under No. UKZUZ 106522/2023 (Potopová *et al.*, 2023b).

## 5.1 Implementation of the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model

Uncertainty is considered a major concern when using crop growth models. During the calibration of the model, the most crucial step is to identify the optimization of errors by using specific objectives and approaches. This process involves a reliable understanding of the selected model's function (Ran et al., 2022). Qian et al. (2018) found that the simulated yields of WOSR from various locations in Canada declined by 24 to 37.2% compared to the observed yields under RCP4.5 and RCP8.5, respectively. The yield reduction was mostly correlated with heat increases and water stresses under rainfed conditions, which were modelled using the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model (DSSAT V4.6). Projected precipitation and CO<sub>2</sub> concentration were successfully addressed using the model based on future scenarios at global warming levels of 2.0 °C, 2.5 °C, and 3.0 °C, respectively (Qian et al., 2019). Our results indicated that the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model was successfully calibrated based on the input dataset and genetic coefficient of the WOSR variety. The performance agreement between observed and simulated yields for the Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka showed lower RMSEs of 0.26 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, 0.04 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, and 0.07 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively. In the case of seed oil content, the RMSE was 1.18%, 0.67%, and 1.19% for Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka, respectively. From these results, the accuracy of the model calibration and performance of the model were evaluated as a good fit for the simulation of selected WOSR varieties for experimental activities. The CSM-CROPGRO-Canola model was also successfully calibrated and evaluated in Wuhan, China, for nitrogen fertilizer doses and planting density experiments. The simulation results of the study showed significant accuracy with a small range of error of 0-3 days for the anthesis and a lower root mean square error (RMSE) of 7.48% for the yield attributes (Wang et al., 2022).

### **5.2 Impacts of temperature changes**

Temperature plays a vital role in crop growth and development, which in turn shapes crop phenological development and dry matter accumulation (Xiao and Tao, 2014). In many studies, it has been observed that crop yields are reduced due to prolonged seed-filling times due to early flowering and prolonged physiological maturation (Ahmad et al., 2016; He et al., 2016; Xiao et al., 2013). Temperature played a crucial role in determining the timing and duration of key phenological stages in winter oilseed rape. The phenological development of WOSR is regulated by temperature, vernalization (cold exposure is essential for flowering), and the photoperiod from leaf initiation to stem elongation (Böttcher et al., 2016). Poor stem establishment before winter can result in remarkable foliage loss, a reduced leaf area index, and declining nitrogen storage due to low temperatures and low light intensity during winter (Bhattacharya, 2022). However, increased temperatures and prolonged day lengths delayed the vernalization period (Hoffmann et al., 2015). When temperatures remain above 0°C continuously, WOSR experiences rapid growth and produces most of its aboveground biomass over a few weeks. The most favorable temperatures for photosynthesis, vegetative growth, and reproductive processes range from 21 to 25°C (Deligios et al., 2013). Warmer temperatures during the vernalization period resulted in enhanced crop vegetative development (Korres et al., 2016). A higher temperature during flowering was found to cause a decrease in seed set and seed weight, ultimately reducing the crop's yield potential (Wu et al., 2020).

Temperate climates reduce growth periods by approximately 1°C of increase in ambient temperature (Joy *et al.*, 2020). Conversely, optimum seed and oil yield production needs specific day/night average temperature ranges around 20 to 15°C and 15 to 13°C, respectively (Marjanović-Jeromela *et al.*, 2019). Late sowing dates also significantly reduce primary branches and flowers per plant (Balodis and Gaile, 2016). High temperatures reduced the length of seed development inside the pods and may have enhanced the senescence of leaves to *reduce* photosynthetic capacity (Weymann *et al.*, 2015). In our study, we found that the growth and development of WOSR showed the effects of temperature changes.

Based on the results and the weather evaluation, the warm temperature region Chrastava has lower growth and a lower leaf area index (LAI) of 3.75, 3.69, and 3.57 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup> for Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka, respectively. However, the normal temperature region Vysoká showed higher growth and LAI ranges from 4.73, 4.78, and 4.69 m<sup>2</sup> m<sup>-2</sup> for Architect, Temptation, and Sněžka, respectively. In the case of the projected temperature scenario, the highest simulated maximum LAI was recorded from the Vysoká location with the Sněžka variety, while the Chrastava location showed the worst simulated maximum Lai with the Architect variety.

### **5.3 Impacts of drought stress**

Extreme droughts and water scarcity can lead to various environmental issues, including poor crop establishment and decreased crop yields (Chen and Sun, 2015; Lobell *et al.*, 2011). Several climate factors play a role in the occurrence of droughts and affect crop production (Wang, 2017; Chen *et al.*, 2013; Trnka *et al.*, 2011). The initial effect of drought on plants is poor germination and damage to seedling establishment. Various studies have reported the negative effects of drought stress on germination and seedling growth (Marthandan *et al.*, 2020). Drought impacts the quantity and size of individual leaves. Generally, leaf expansion is dependent on turgor pressure and assimilation. Reduced turgor pressure and slowed photosynthesis under dry conditions are the main limiters of leaf expansion (Hageman and Van Volkenburgh, 2021). Fresh and dry weights are also significantly reduced under low water conditions (Zhao *et al.*, 2022; Potopová *et al.*, 2018).

Plant growth occurs primarily through cell division, proliferation, and differentiation. Drought impairs mitosis and cell expansion, resulting in poor growth (Koch *et al.*, 2019). Drought limits cell growth primarily due to the loss of turgor (Begna, 2020). Low-water conditions lead to impaired cell elongation, mainly due to poor water movement from the xylem to neighboring cells (Wahab *et al.*, 2022). In our study, 2020–2021 was found to be a dry growing season with severe dry days during crop establishment in comparison with the growing season 2021–2022, based on the weather evaluation. Dry weather conditions during early crop establishment and growth have effects on WOAR yields. Substantial yield variations have been observed between the dry and normal growing seasons.

Under normal conditions, the observed yields vary from 4.40 to 6.40 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, whereas under dry conditions, the yield ranges from 3.86 to 5.84 t ha<sup>-1</sup>. Studies by Weymaan *et al.* (2015) suggest that drought stress before flowering can primarily decline total biomass production. However, a lack of water during flowering reduces total pod density. In addition, the limited-water condition between anthesis and maturity impacts the seed weight and seed oil concentration.

### 5.4 Risk assessment of compound events during WOSR production

Compound events in central Europe, including the Czech Republic, can manifest in various ways, and their impacts on WOSR can be more severe than single events in isolation. For instance, the simultaneous occurrence of heatwaves and droughts can lead to water stress and reduced photosynthesis, negatively affecting crop yield (Rivero et al., 2022; Potopová et al., 2021a-b). In contrast, floods during the germination and flowering stages can cause waterlogging that can lead to root damage and reduced nutrient uptake, lowering the yield potential of WOSR (Shahzad et al., 2021). Also, compound events can amplify the risks of pest and disease outbreaks due to changes in temperature and moisture availability, compromising crop health (Challinor et al., 2018). Compound events on WOSR in the Czech Republic can arise from the simultaneous occurrence of heatwaves, droughts, heavy precipitation, and frost events. The interaction of these events leads to increased stress levels for the crop, affecting growth, development, and yield. Prolonged heat waves during flowering stages can reduce pollen viability and limit successful pollination, leading to poor seed set and yield losses (Chen et al., 2021). Additionally, combinations of water deficits and extreme heat can induce moisture stress, further hindering WOSR productivity (Rivelli et al., 2023).

Various studies have demonstrated that the Czech Republic has seen an increase in the frequency and magnitude of compound events in recent decades. The region witnessed more prolonged heatwaves and concurrent dry spells, especially during the critical growth stages of WOSR, leading to significant yield reductions (Reddy, 2015). Also, extreme precipitation events became more common, resulting in soil waterlogging and increased runoff, impacting the crop's development and nutrient absorption (Zscheischler *et al.*, 2020).

Changing climate patterns are primarily attributed to gas emissions, especially greenhouse gases from human activities, leading to global warming and alterations in atmospheric circulation patterns. All these changes intensify the likelihood of compound events occurring in Central Europe, including the Czech Republic, that can lead to more frequent and severe impacts on WOSR and other oilseed crops (IPCC, 2014).

In the growing season 2021–2022, the observed phenological phases (first pod, seed, maturity) showed an optimal length of growth phases, while in the growing season 2020–2021, extreme weather events shortened the phenological phases. Thus, the results showed that all measured values of the individual phenological phases identified higher values in the colder area (Vysoká) and lower values in the warmer area (Chrastava). In the case of initial pod formation, the simulated values under normal weather conditions in 2021–2022 were overestimated by the model by 15.13 to 20.96%. However, for hot and dry weather in 2020–2021, the model underestimated the values by 11.74 to 22.69%. The simulated days of first seed formation were underestimated by 9.92 to 16.60% for both years. In addition, the model underestimated the values of physiological maturity from 6.95 to 22.14% and harvest maturity from 7.54 to 20.80%, respectively, in all locations and years. The slight deviation in the simulated and experimental values may be due to the inability of the crop model to capture the controlled experimental conditions at the CISTA experimental stations.

Study conducted by Hájková *et al.*, (2021) examined the impact of temperature and precipitation on the phenological stages and yield components of winter oilseed rape cultivars. The study emphasized the impact of temperature in determining the oil content of WOSR. Warmer temperatures were associated with lower oil content, potentially impacting the quality and economic value of the crop. During seed development, temperature and precipitation substantially affect yield by influencing the assimilation duration and rate of seed filling (Sehgal *et al.*, 2018). Yield potential may be determined until the end of flowering, but its consciousness mostly depends on temperature and water availability during subsequent growth phases (Weymann *et al.*, 2015). Rising temperatures result in more frequent droughts and decreased crop productivity (Liu *et al.*, 2016). Moreover, lower solar radiation can also negatively impact crop yields (Yang *et al.*, 2019).

# 5.5 Uncertainty in climate scenarios (temperature and precipitation) for the Czech Republic

In the Czech Republic, the 21st century promises a profound transformation in climate conditions, marked by significant shifts in both temperature and precipitation patterns. These projections, drawn from multiple climate experiments and scenarios, reveal an alarming trajectory of the climate for the region (Zahradníček *et al.*, 2016). Depending on the emissions scenario, the annual temperature is poised to increase substantially. Under the RCP4.5 scenario, a yearly rise of 2.0 °C is expected towards the end of this century, compared to the reference period between 1981 to 2010 (Zahradníček *et al.*, 2016). However, the more severe RCP8.5 scenario shows an even grimmer picture with a doubling of the temperature increase to 4.1 °C annually within the same timeframe (Zandvoort *et al.*, 2017). Holtanova *et al.*, (2014) found that the climate situation becomes increasingly unpredictable beyond 2050 for the Czech Republic, with deviation among emissions scenarios. Under the RCP8.5 scenario, temperatures variations might act dramatically, with projecting an incredible 5 °C increase by the end of the century compared to the reference period of 1981-2010 (Potopová, *et al.*, 2018). In contrast, the RCP4.5 scenario showed a relatively stable climate from 2061 onward, with temperatures rising by approximately 2°C (Jevšenak *et al.*, 2021).

In relation to rising temperatures, precipitation patterns are undergoing transformation with high spatial and temporal variability (Santos *et al.*, 2010). Projections from Euro-CORDEX experiments indicate a modest increase of approximately 7–13% in precipitation sums under RCP4.5 and 6–16% under RCP8.5 by the end of the century (Mihai *et al.*, 2022). However, the variability in precipitation is contingent upon factors such as atmospheric circulation and the nation's intricate topography. Despite these forecasts of slightly increased precipitation, a growing concern is the rise in evapotranspiration due to elevated temperatures and shifting precipitation patterns, potentially favoring drought conditions in the future (Madsen *et al.*, 2014). Drought is a rapidly increasing issue in the Czech Republic, with recent years witnessing a surge in occurrences, including droughts in 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015 (Acosta *et al.*, 2020).

These droughts stem from a combination of below-average precipitation and remarkably high temperatures. Unexpectedly, while the new Euro-CORDEX experiments project slightly higher precipitation sums, the synergy of increased temperatures and altered precipitation frequencies may aggravate evapotranspiration, further intensifying the risk of drought in the coming years Particularly, the climate impact extends to temperature extremes, with prolonged heatwaves emerging as a significant concern (Berg *et al.*, 2019). Moreover, heatwaves have the potential to compound drought conditions, increase evapotranspiration, and accelerate landscape desiccation (Rulfová *et al.*, 2017).

# 6. CONCLUSIONS

Winter oilseed rape is the EU's dominant oil crop for food and feed purposes. Compound climate events are now an alert concern for farmers, researchers, and policymakers to achieve sustainable crop production with increasing demand. The current findings highlight the performance of three winter oilseed rape varieties, Temptation, Architect, and Sněžka, at three different experimental locations under current climate conditions and projected simulation conditions for future scenarios. The simulation model CSM-CROPGRO-Canola was tested for the first time in the Czech Republic. The study also evaluated the yield performance of the varieties using the CSM-CROPGRO-Canola simulation model based on the weather conditions and plant-soil-atmosphere dynamics. The practical application of this crop model was found to be realistic when modelling the suitability of varieties for different agroclimatic conditions based on the results obtained through this study. The summary of the results from the current study is:

- The research confirms the first hypothesis that the intensity and frequency of compound weather events will negatively impact the quantity and quality of winter oilseed rape (WOSR) crops. Under the present climatic conditions, the Staňkov region experienced more pronounced heat stress during the flowering and grain-filling stages. Moreover, the study predicts that in the future, the Staňkov region will face a greater likelihood of heat stress compared to the Chrastava and Vysoká regions. Nevertheless, the possibility of water logging during seedling and floral bud development will decrease across all three locations, indicating an increased probability of drought occurrences. In terms of black frost events, the cold and dry scenario could lead to reduced yields in all three areas, with the highest risk observed in the Chrastava region.
- The study also validated the second hypothesis that fluctuations in temperature impact the growth and development of WOSR due to climate change. Evaluating the agrometeorological conditions, we observed that the warmer region of Chrastava showed reduced plant growth and a lower Leaf Area Index (LAI) compared to the colder Vysoká region. Furthermore, the simulated LAI and yield attributes showed lower values under the projected temperature scenario of +2°C (Sc2) than the current temperature condition (Sc1), regardless of the variety and location.

- The current research further validates and confirms the third hypothesis by comparing the two distinct growing seasons: 2021–2022, considered normal weather conditions, and 2020–2021, the dry season. When comparing the agrometeorological conditions of these two growing seasons, it became clear that the dry season hampered the early establishment of crops, causing insufficient crop growth and ultimately leading to a decrease in crop yield. Significant yield variations have been observed across experimental regions. In normal agrometeorological conditions, the range for the lowest and highest yields was 4.40 to 6.40 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, while during the dry growing season, this range was 3.86 to 5.84 t ha<sup>-1</sup>, respectively.
- The study confirms the final hypothesis regarding the joint precipitation and temperature extremes during the seed-filling stage. The model's yield estimations under normal weather conditions in the 2021–2022 growing season were found to be higher than observed values, surpassing them by 15.13% to 20.96%. However, during the hot and dry weather of the 2020–2021 season, the model underestimated the yield values by 11.74% to 22.69%, illustrating the impacts of simultaneous precipitation and temperature events. Furthermore, under the conditions of hot and dry weather, the model's estimations for physiological maturity were lower than the observed values by 6.95% to 22.14%, and for harvest maturity, the underestimation ranged from 7.54% to 20.80%.

To sum up, this doctoral dissertation successfully addressed all the hypotheses and fulfilled the objectives. Our findings assume that the Sněžka variety consistently displayed the highest seed yield across all three locations under both present and projected climate scenarios, whereas the Temptation variety exhibited the highest seed oil content among the tested WOSR varieties. While considering the compound weather events across the experimental locations, the Vysoká and the Chrastava areas exhibited the greatest and the lowest seed yield, respectively. On the other hand, it is found that the Sněžka and Temptation varieties have the potential to achieve higher seed and oil yields under climate change conditions. As a part of further research, the DSSAT Foundation from the United States would like to incorporate our experimental data and crop simulation results of these new varieties of winter oilseed rape into their global DSSAT database for the upcoming version of the program.

# 7. PUBLICATIONS AND OUTCOMES



MDP

### Article

# Climate Change Impacts Assessment Using Crop Simulation Model Intercomparison Approach in Northern Indo-Gangetic **Basin of Bangladesh**

Md Rafique Ahasan Chawdhery <sup>1,\*</sup>, Murtuza Al-Mueed <sup>2</sup>, Md Abdul Wazed <sup>3</sup>, Shah-Al Emran <sup>4</sup>, Md Abeed Hossain Chowdhury <sup>5</sup> and Sk Ghulam Hussain <sup>6</sup>

- Department of Agroecology and Crop Production, Faculty of Agrobiology, Food and Natural Resources, Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Kamýcká 129, Suchdol, 16500 Prague, Czech Republic
- 2 Ministry of Public Administration, Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh
- Department of Chemical and Materials Engineering, University of Auckland, Private Bag 92019, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
- Department of Crop Sciences, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Urbana, IL 61801, USA
- Bangladesh Agricultural Research Council, Crop Zoning Project, Farngate, Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh International Maize and Wheat Improvement Center (CIIMMYT), Gulshan-1, Dhaka 1212, Bangladesh
- Correspondence: chawdhery@af.czu.cz



Al-Mueed, M.; Wazed, M.A.; Emran, S.-A.: Chowdhury, M.A.H.: Hussain, S.G. Climate Change Impacts Assessment Using Crop Simulation Model Intercomparison Approach in Northern Indo-Gangetic Basin of Bangladesh, Int. I. Environ, Res. Public Health 2022, 19, 15829. https:// doi.org/10.3390/ijerph192315829

Academic Editors: Yipeng Guo and Yan Liu

Received: 7 October 2022 Accepted: 23 November 2022 Published: 28 November 2022

Publisher's Note: MDPI stays neutral with regard to jurisdictional claims in published maps and institutional affil-



Copyright: © 2022 by the authors Licensee MDPI, Basel, Switzerland. This article is an open access article distributed under the terms and conditions of the Creative Commons Attribution (CC BY) license (https:// creativecommons.org/licenses/by/ 4.0/).

Abstract: The climate change impacts of South Asia (SA) are inextricably linked with increased monsoon variability and a clearly deteriorating trend with more frequent deficit monsoons. One of the most climate-vulnerable nations in the eastern and central Indo-Gangetic Basin is Bangladesh. There have been numerous studies on the effects of climate change in Bangladesh; however, most of them tended to just look at a small fraction of the impact elements or were climatic projections without accounting for the effects on agriculture. Additionally, simulation studies using the CERES-Rice and CERES-Wheat models were conducted for rice and wheat to evaluate the effects of climate change on Bangladeshi agriculture. However, up to now, Bangladesh has not implemented farming system ideas by integrating cropping systems with other income-generating activities. This study was conducted as part of the Indo-Gangetic Basin (IGB) regional evaluations using the protocols and integrated assessment processes of the Agricultural Model Intercomparison and Improvement Project (AgMIP). It was also done to calibrate crop models (APSIM and DSSAT) using rice and wheat. To assist policymakers in creating national and regional plans for anticipated future agricultural systems, our work on the integrated evaluation of climate change impacts on agricultural systems produced realistic predictions. The outcome of this research prescribes a holistic assessment of climate change on future production systems by including all the relevant enterprises in the agriculture sector. The findings of the study suggested two major strategies to minimize the yield and increase the profitability in a rice-wheat cropping system. Using a short-term HYV (High Yielding Variety) of rice can shift the sowing time of wheat by 7 days in advance compared to the traditional sowing days of mid-November. In addition, increasing the irrigation amount by 50 mm for wheat showed a better yield by 1.5-32.2% in different scenarios. These climate change adaptation measures could increase the per capita income by as high as 3.6% on the farm level.

Keywords: APSIM and DSSAT crop simulation models; climate change impact; cropping system; Indo-Gangetic Basin (IGB); integrated approach

#### 1. Introduction

Climate change impacts are increasingly visible in South Asia (SA), with greater variability of the monsoon, noticeably, a declining trend with more frequent deficit monsoons [1]. Bangladesh is one of the most climate-vulnerable countries in the central and eastern Indo-Gangetic Basin. The rapidly growing population of the country puts tremendous pressure on its scarce natural resources. The country is vulnerable to many climatic

Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health 2022, 19, 15829. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph192315829

The Journal of Agricultural Science

cambridge.org/ags

### Climate Change and Agriculture Research Paper

Cite this article: Muntean N, Chawdhery RA Potopová V, Tűrkott L (2021). The ability of CROPGRO-Tomato model to simulate the growth characteristics of Thomas F1 tomato cultivar grown under open field conditions. *The Journal of Agricultural Science* **159**, 473–487. https://doi.org/10.1017/ S0021859621000770

Received: 27 March 2021 Revised: 27 August 2021 Accepted: 9 September 2021 First published online: 24 November 2021

Key words:

Compound weather events; crop simulation model; DSSAT; Solanum lycopersicum L

Author for correspondence: V. Potopová, E-mail: potop@af.czu.cz

© The Author(s), 2021. Published by

CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY PRESS

Cambridge University Press

# The ability of CROPGRO-Tomato model to simulate the growth characteristics of Thomas F1 tomato cultivar grown under open field conditions

( CrossMark

### N. Muntean, R. A. Chawdhery, V. Potopová 💿 and L. Tűrkott

Department of Agroecology and Crop Production, Faculty of Agrobiology, Food and Natural Resources, Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Czech Republic

#### Abstract

There are few studies about the ability of CROPGRO-Tomato model to simulate tomato growth under field conditions as a function of both local weather and soil conditions. The aim of this work was to calibrate the CROPGRO-Tomato model, included in the Decision Support System for Agrotechnology Transfer (DSSAT) software, for the Thomas F1 indeterminate tomato cultivar grown under open field conditions at two locations in the Czech Republic with different soil and climate conditions. Additionally, this paper focuses on modelling the impact of compound weather events (CEs) on the growth characteristics of the hybrid field tomato variety. The genotype file, including the main parameters of crop phenology and plant growth, was adapted to the Thomas F1 indeterminate tomato cultivar. The CROPGRO-Tomato model was calibrated by inputting the soil characteristics, weather data and crop management data and then by adjusting the genetic coefficients to simulate the observed Leaf Area Index (LAI) and Above Ground Biomass (AGB) from transplanting to harvest under the farmers' field conditions. The comparison of the LAI simulated by the model and measured under field conditions showed adequate representation with the root mean square error of 0.86 and 1.11 m<sup>2</sup>/m<sup>2</sup>. Although there was a good fit for LAI and AGB between the simulated and measured data during the first part of the growing season, increasing differences were found in the growing season with cool-wet and/or hot-dry thresholds of CEs

#### Introduction

Field-grown tomatoes are exposed to an assortment of extreme weather events and climate conditions, but the impacts of such factors are complex and difficult to assess. Fruit formation in tomato cultivars decreases when temperatures are too high and drought frequency increases (Potopová *et al.*, 2017*a*). The combination of multiple weather and climate events is considered to be a compound event (CEs) and results from a combination of climatic variables (extreme precipitation and wind, heatwaves and drought, heatwaves and violent storms) (Zscheischler *et al.*, 2017). Thus, CEs have a huge impact on yield, speed of ripening and the presence of vitamins in the grown tomatoes (e.g. the lycopene concentrations; Potopová *et al.*, 2017b).

Modelling the interactions between several competing events is more complex than modelling the drivers of individual events (Potopová *et al.*, 2021). Dynamic crop simulation models can be a useful tool to simulate the wide-ranging effects of CEs on vegetable production where impacts depend on multiple dependent weather-soil variables and crop management. The crop models calculate expected growth and development based on equations that describe how a crop, as a community of plants, responds to soil and weather conditions (Hoogenboom *et al.*, 2019). Computer simulation models of the soil-plant-atmosphere system can make a valuable contribution to both improving crop performance and predicting environmental impacts in different management scenarios. Although crop models have a great potential for practical use, particularly in horticultural field production, their use remains limited (Gary *et al.*, 1998; Boote, 2017). Tomato has been a pioneer vegetable species for crop modelling. In recent decades, most of the tomato modelling effort has been put on carbon fluxes and development processes related to the crop environment (Boote *et al.*, 2012).

There are several crop growth models for tomato, some of which are adapted for greenhouse production and others for field production systems. Some examples are TOMGRO (Jones *et al.*, 1991), HORTISIM (Gijzen *et al.*, 1997), TOMSIM (Heuvelink and Bertin, 1994), TOMPOUSSE (Gary *et al.*, 1996) and SIMULTOM (Sauviller *et al.*, 2002). In field production, modelling has been focused on predicting harvest date and dry matter production, as well as to estimate water and nutrient requirements. The CROPGRO-Tomato model was adopted by Scholberg *et al.* (1997) to simulate field-grown tomato. Boote *et al.* (2012) developed a module for predicting fresh tomato weight and fruit size, which was added to the

Downloaded from https://www.cambridge.org/core. Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, on 13 Jan 2022 at 09:31:10, subject to the Cambridge Core terms of use, available at https://www.cambridge.org/core/terms. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0021859621000770





# Potential of Community Volunteers in Flood Early Warning **Dissemination: A Case Study of Bangladesh**

Murtuza Al-Mueed <sup>1,2,\*</sup>, Md Rafique Ahasan Chawdhery <sup>3</sup>, Emmanuel Harera <sup>2</sup>, Riyadh A. Alhazmi <sup>4</sup>, Abdulmajeed M. Mobrad <sup>4</sup><sup>(0)</sup>, Saqer M. Althunayyan <sup>5</sup><sup>(0)</sup> and Ahmed M. Al-Wathinani <sup>4</sup><sup>(1)</sup>

- Ministry of Public Administration, Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh
- Humanitarian and Conflict Response Institute, School of Arts, Languages and Cultures, University of Manchester, Manchester M13 9PL, UK; hareraemmy@gmail.com
- Department of Agroecology and Crop Production, Faculty of Agrobiology, Food and Natural Resources, Czech University of Life Sciences, Prague, Kamýcká 129, Suchdol, 16500 Prague, Czech Republic; chawdhery@af.czu.cz
- Department of Emergency Medical Services, Prince Sultan Bin Abdulaziz College Emergency Medical Services, King Saud University, Riyadh 11451, Saudi Arabia; rialhazmi@ksu.edu.sa (R.A.A.); amobrad@ksu.edu.sa (A.M.M.); ahmalotaibi@ksu.edu.sa (A.M.A.-W.)
- Department of Accident and Trauma, Prince Sultan Bin Abdulaziz College Emergency Medical Services, King Saud University, Riyadh 11451, Saudi Arabia; salthunayyan@ksu.edu.sa
- Correspondence: murtuza.mueed@gmail.com; Tel.: +880-01716-059994



Citation: Al-Mueed, M.; Chawdhery, M.R.A.: Harera, E.: Alhazmi, R.A.: Mobrad, A.M.; Althunavyan, S.M.; Al-Wathinani, A.M. Potential of Community Volunteers in Flood Early Warning Dissemination: A Case Study of Bangladesh. Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health 2021, 18, 13010. https://doi.org/10.3390/ ijerph182413010

Academic Editor: Paul B. Tchounwou

Received: 3 November 2021 Accepted: 3 December 2021 Published: 9 December 2021

Publisher's Note: MDPI stays neutral with regard to jurisdictional claims in published maps and institutional affil-



Copyright: © 2021 by the authors Licensee MDPI, Basel, Switzerland. This article is an open access article distributed under the terms and conditions of the Creative Commons Attribution (CC BY) license (https:// creativecommons.org/licenses/by/ 4.07)

Abstract: Flood early warning (FEW) is a vital component of disaster risk management and is particularly important for saving lives, developing a sustainable agro-based economy, economic stability, and the overall development of the people of Bangladesh as well as others. This study was conducted in a northern, flood-prone area of Bangladesh to investigate the potential of incorporating volunteers of the community to the Union Councils (UCs) to disseminate FEW alongside the topdown approach. Several studies have found that despite having a sophisticated flood forecasting technology, local communities are not reaping the benefits of it, as the existing dissemination system is inaccessible to most local people. Since risk communication takes place in a social context, this study investigated and thereby proposed that volunteerism, as a form of social capital or communal virtue, can potentially assist the community-based disaster management (CBDM) institutions in enhancing their capacity to reach the maximum population at times of flood risk. Therefore, it was confirmed that the trained volunteers need to be integrated into and endorsed by the national policy. In addition, this study also provides a number of recommendations connecting literature with policy documents of Bangladesh.

Keywords: flood early warning; flood response; community volunteerism; disaster volunteer group; resilience; governance and planning; disaster management; sustainability

#### 1. Introduction

Flooding is a major natural disaster in Bangladesh, considering the number of people affected as well as the frequency of occurrence. Dissemination of flood risk information is an important part of a flood forecasting and early warning system (FFEWS) [1]. The government of Bangladesh strengthened the Community-Based Disaster Management (CBDM) approach based on the Union Councils (UCs), the lowest tier of local government institutions in the country. Under each UC there is a Union Disaster Management Committee (UDMC) responsible for managing disasters at the community level. However, it was realized that further improvement in the process of disseminating flood information was needed to reach those at immediate flood risk [2]. The primary goal of a Flood Early Warning (FEW)system is to increase the safety of the people and reduce the harmful impact of floods [3,4]. People need to know the risk factors, and they should understand the warning to cope with the coming flood [5]. Therefore, a FEW minimizes risk to life, helps

Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health 2021, 18, 13010. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph182413010

https://www.mdpi.com/journal/ijerph

	Agricultural Water Management 262 (2022) 107337
	Contents lists available at ScienceDirect Agricultural Water Management
ELSEVIER	journal homepage: www.elsevier.com/locate/agwat
Projection of 21st cen agricultural crop comm V. Potopová <sup>a,b,*,1</sup> , M. Trnka M. Musiolková <sup>a</sup> , P. Pavlík <sup>c,</sup> <sup>C</sup> czeh University of Life Sciences Progue, Depar Global Charge Research Institute of the Czech	tury irrigation water requirements for sensitive modities across the Czech Republic a <sup>b</sup> , A. Vizina <sup>G,e</sup> , D. Semerádová <sup>b</sup> , J. Balek <sup>b</sup> , M.R.A. Chawdhery <sup>a</sup> , <sup>e</sup> , M. Možný <sup>a,b</sup> , P. Štěpánek <sup>b</sup> , B. Clothier <sup>d</sup> tment of Agroecology and Crop Production (Meteorological Section), Czech Republic tacdamy of Sciences, Branc, Czech Republic
T. G. Masaryk Water Research Institution, p. r. The New Zealand Institute for Plant and Food i Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Depar	i. Research Limited, New Zealand timent of Water Resources and Environmental Modeling, Czech Republic
ARTICLE INFO	ABSTRACT
Handling Editor - Xiying Zhang	This study quantified the crop water consumption, crop-specific irrigation requirements, and availability of water resources to catch ments under climate change in the Cach Benuhir (C2). Within the Soliciim model and BII AM
Keywords: Crop water consumption Crop specific irrigation requirements Water use indicators Orchards Vineyards Hop gardens Vegetables Fodder	WATTERES hydrological water balance modeling process, we tried to answer the question of whether there are at least theoretical water resources in the individual catchments of the <i>C2</i> that could cover possible higher demands for irrigation. An ensemble of five global climate models under the moderate representative concentration pathway (RCP4.5) from the EURO-CORDEX initiative was chosen to project the future water use indicators. The irrigation water requirement indicators for the growing season (GS) of vineyards, hop gardens, orchards, vegetables, and fodder crops were calculated in 1143 catchments for two periods, 2031–2050 (Sc1) and 2061–2080 (Sc2), compared to the observed period 1961–2020 (Ohs). To project irrigation scenarios in agricultural water management, the following water use indicators were quantified: relative soil moisture at 0–40 cm ( <i>AWR1</i> ) and 0–100 cm ( <i>AWR</i> ), crop water balance ( <i>Rain ET<sub>a</sub></i> ), irrigation water requirement ( <i>Urrig</i> ), and the ratio of actual and reference evaportanspiration ( <i>R<sub>Train</sub></i> ). To assess areas with a critically low water supply and quantify the frequency of water deficit during the GS of each crop, we calculated the number of days with extreme values of water use indicators. Quantification of the extreme irrigation characteristics reflected the highest depletion of soil moisture and the highest water demands, i.e., when the assessed indicators reached the 25th percentiles. For highly marketable vegetables, the largest deficit or ver the next few decades. The accumulated vineyard water capacity, they will become controlled by the water deficit over the next few decades. The accumulated vineyard water required suggests that 15% and 25% of irrigation hotspots. In the main traditional hop region for the 2030s, we project a 25% depletion of soil moisture and an increase of <i>ET<sub>rain</sub></i> < 0.4 by up to 5.3%. The projection of a high frequency of days with an <i>ET<sub>rain</sub></i> < 0.4 and <i>AWR1</i> < 30% for fodder crops was related to the most risk-prone areas with an <i>ET<sub>rain</sub></i> < 0.
* Correspondence to: Department of Ag E-mail address: potop@af.czu.cz (V. P 1 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.agwat.2021.10 Received 28 July 2021; Received in revis Available online 17 November 2021 0378-3774/© 2021 Elsevier B.V. All right	roecology and Crop Production (Meteorological Section), Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Prague, Czech Republic. otopová). 7337 ed form 3 November 2021; Accepted 6 November 2021 is reserved.





#### Article

# Water Consumption by Livestock Systems from 2002–2020 and Predictions for 2030–2050 under Climate Changes in the Czech Republic

Vera Potopová <sup>1</sup>,\*<sup>1</sup>,\*<sup>1</sup>, Marie Musiolková <sup>1</sup>, Juliana Arbelaez Gaviria <sup>2</sup>, Miroslav Trnka <sup>2</sup>, Petr Havlík <sup>3</sup>, Esther Boere <sup>3</sup>, Tudor Trifan <sup>1</sup>, Nina Muntean <sup>1</sup> and Md Rafique Ahasan Chawdhery <sup>1</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Department of Agroecology and Crop Production (Meteorological Section), Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, 165 00 Praha-Suchdol, Czech Republic; musiolkova@af.czu.cz (M.M.); chawdhery@af.czu.cz (M.R.A.C.)
- chawdhery@ar.czu.cz (M.K.A.C.)
- <sup>2</sup> Global Change Research Institute, Czech Academy of Sciences, 603 00 Brno, Czech Republic
- <sup>3</sup> International Institute for Applied Systems Analysis (IIASA), 2361 Laxenburg, Austria; boere@iiasa.ac.at (E.B.)
- Correspondence: potop@af.czu.cz

Abstract: The livestock system in Europe relies on a complex holistic equilibrium that is the outcome of an interplay of demand, market, crop production, livestock production, land use, water availability, and other factors. When modeling future scenarios of water consumption by livestock systems, the most suitable tools result from the interconnectivity of growth models, economic models, and climate models. We integrated the Environmental Policy Integrated Climate growth model (EPIC), animal-level model (RUMINANT), economic model (Global Biosphere Management Model, GLOBIOM), EURO-CORDEX climate models, and regression models. This study developed novel livestock production scenarios for individual regions of the Czech Republic with estimations of the categories of livestock that have been bred during the last 20 years and will be bred in the future and what their water consumption will be, both throughout the year and in particular seasons. First, the numbers of farm animals, namely, cattle, pigs, sheep, horses, goats, and poultry in 2002–2020 were evaluated, and their numbers were predicted for the following years until 2050. Second, livestock water consumption per region was determined based on the number of livestock individuals. Third, changes in the amount of water consumed by livestock per year in individual regions in 2050 compared to 2005 were estimated.

Keywords: thermal humidity index; cattle; pigs; sheep; horses; goats; poultry; global biosphere management model; food security

#### 1. Introduction

Livestock (cattle, pigs, sheep, horses, goats, and poultry, namely, hens, ducks, turkeys, and geese) is a source of 33% of the protein in human diets [1] as well as an important source of commodities consumed by people and provides many other services, such as traction, manure, risk management, and regular income [2]. Multiple extreme climate events (CEs) comprise a compound event and often result from a combination of climatic factors [3]. The direct and indirect effects of global warming, combined with the increasing frequency of weather extremes, are severe issues for livestock production, even in temperate climates such as central Europe [4–7]. The dual concept of feed losses and compound CEs has been suggested as an approach to understanding the extreme impacts of and reducing farmers' exposure to weather-related financial risks [8]. Sustainable fodder production for increasing livestock trends is exposed to an ensemble of CEs whose impacts are complex and difficult to assess [9]. CEs can contribute to increased vulnerability of water resources, which will affect the optimum water demand for fodder production to support the livestock sector. In that case, vulnerability assessment of optimum water resources for livestock, estimation of

Agriculture 2023, 13, 1291. https://doi.org/10.3390/agriculture13071291

https://www.mdpi.com/journal/agriculture



M.; Gaviria, J.A.; Trnka, M.; Havlík, P.; Boere, E.; Trifan, T.; Muntean, N.; Chawdhery, M.R.A. Water Consumption by Livestock Systems from 2002–2020 and Predictions for 2030–2050 under Climate Changes in the Czech Republic. Agriculture 2023, 13, 1291. https://doi.org/10.3390/ agriculture13071291

Academic Editor: Dengpan Xiao

Received: 18 May 2023 Revised: 20 June 2023 Accepted: 21 June 2023 Published: 24 June 2023

# © O

Copyright: © 2023 by the authors. Licensee MDPI, Basel, Switzerland. This article is an open access article distributed under the terms and conditions of the Creative Commons Attribution (CC BY) license (https:// creativecommons.org/licenses/by/ 4.0/).

64

TYPE Perspective PUBLISHED 24 March 2023 DOI 10.3389/fpls.2023.1135845

### Check for updates

### OPEN ACCESS

EDITED BY Indrakant K. Singh, University of Delhi, India

Prachi Pandey, National Institute of Plant Genome Research (NIPGR), India

\*CORRESPONDENCE Madhab Kumar Sen Senm@af.czu.cz

<sup>1</sup>These authors have contributed equally to this work

SPECIALTY SECTION This article was submitted to Plant Pathogen Interactions, a section of the journal Frontiers in Plant Science

RECEIVED 01 January 2023 ACCEPTED 06 March 2023 PUBLISHED 24 March 2023

#### TATION

Hamouzová K, Sen MK, Bharati R, Košnarová P, Chawdhery MRA, Roy A and Soukup J (2023) Calcium signalling in weeds under herbicide stress: An outlook. *Front. Plant Sci.* 14:1135845 doi:10.33391/pls.2023.1135845

#### OPYRIGHT

© 2023 Hamouzová, Sen, Bharati, Košnarová, Chawdhey, Roy and Soukup, This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC BY). The use, distribution or reproduction in other forums is permitted, provided the original author(s) and the copyright owner(s) are credited and that the original publication in this journal is cited, in accordance with accepted academic practice. No use, distribution or reproduction is permitted which does not comply with these terms.

# Calcium signalling in weeds under herbicide stress: An outlook

Katerina Hamouzová<sup>1</sup>, Madhab Kumar Sen<sup>1,2\*</sup>, Rohit Bharati<sup>3</sup>, Pavlína Košnarová<sup>1</sup>, Md Rafique Ahasan Chawdhery<sup>1</sup>, Amit Roy<sup>2†</sup> and Josef Soukup<sup>1†</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Department of Agroecology and Crop Production, Faculty of Agrobiology, Food and Natural Resources, Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Prague, Czechia, <sup>2</sup>Excellent Team for Mitigation (E.T.M.), Faculty of Forestry and Wood Sciences, Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Prague, Czechia, <sup>3</sup>Department of Crop Sciences and Agroforestry, The Faculty of Tropical AgriSciences, Czech University of Life Sciences Prague, Prague, Czechia

The continuous use of herbicides for controlling weeds has led to the evolution of resistance to all major herbicidal modes of action globally. Every year, new cases of herbicide resistance are reported. Resistance is still in progress in many species, which must be stopped before it becomes a worldwide concern. Several herbicides are known to cause stressful conditions that resemble plant abiotic stresses. Variation in intracellular calcium (Ca<sup>2+</sup>) concentration is a primary event in a wide range of biological processes in plants, including adaptation to various biotic and abiotic stresses. Ca<sup>2+</sup> acts as a secondary messenger, connecting various environmental stimuli to different biological processes, especially during stress rejoindering in plants. Even though many studies involving Ca<sup>2+</sup> signalling in plants have been published, there have been no studies on the roles of Ca<sup>2+</sup> signalling in herbicide stress response. Hence, this mini-review will highlight the possible sensing and molecular communication via Ca<sup>2+</sup> signals in weeds under herbicide stress. It will also discuss some critical points regarding integrating the sensing mechanisms of multiple stress conditions and subsequent molecular communication. These signalling responses must be addressed in the future, enabling researchers to discover new herbicidal targets.

KEYWORDS

abiotic stress, calcium signalling, food security, herbicide resistance, weeds

### 1 Introduction

Plants cells are the depot for different ions, including calcium. Calcium (Ca<sup>+2</sup>) is an essential bivalent cation with varying plant utilities (Aldon et al., 2018; Yadav et al., 2022). Calcium ions (Ca<sup>2+</sup>) partake in several physiological parameters in plants, including cell division, cytoplasmic streaming, thigmotropism, photomorphogenesis, cell polarization, fruit development and ripening and plant microbe interaction (Gao et al., 2019; Furuichi, 2020; Eichstädt et al., 2021; Duo et al., 2022). Since the discovery of its effects on muscle

Frontiers in Plant Science

frontiersin.org

# Books and practical methodology




Methodology for simulating crop production, water and nutrient management, climate risks and environmental sustainability in DSSAT



## Assoc. Prof. Vera Potopová

Digital edition: ČZU – 2023

#### Metodika simulace produkce plodin, hospodaření s vodou a živinami, klimatických rizik a environmentální udržitelnosti v DSSAT

#### Autorský kolektiv:

doc. Dr. Mgr. Vera Potopová Md Rafique Ahasan Chawdhery Ing. Nina Muntean Dr. Gerrit Hoogenboom Dr. Kenneth J. Boote Mgr. Marie Musiolková, Ph.D.

Katedra agroekologie a rostlinné produkce Fakulta agrobiologie, přírodních a potravinových zdrojů Česká zemědělská univerzita v Praze

Zemědělské a biologické inženýrství Floridská univerzita (University of Florida, UF) ve Spojených státech amerických

Lektoroval: doc. Dr. Mgr. Vera Potopová Jazyková korektura: Mgr. Marie Musiolková, Ph.D.

**Odborní recenzent:** doc. Petr Hlavinka, Ph.D. (Ústav výzkumu globální změny AV ČR, v.v.i.)

Grafický design: Iradion Jachiu

**Vydala**: Katedra agroekologie a rostlinné produkce, Fakulta agrobiologie, potravinových a přírodních zdrojů, Česká zemědělská univerzita v Praze, Kamýcká 129, 165 00 Praha-Suchdol

Rok vydání: 2023

#### ISBN 978-80-213-3254-6

© doc. Dr. Mgr. Vera Potopová

https://home.czu.cz/potop/uvod







#### **Conference** poster



### 8. LIST OF USED LITERATURE

- Acosta, M., Ač, A., Pavelka, M., Havránková, K., Loescher, H. W., Butler, J. H., ... & Marek, M. V. (2020). Addressing environmental change through emergent integrated environmental observatories: A case study in the Czech Republic. *Environments*, 7(3), 19.
- Ahmad, S., Nadeem, M., Abbas, G., Fatima, Z., Khan, R. J. Z., Ahmed, M., ... & Khan, M. A. (2016). Quantification of the effects of climate warming and crop management on sugarcane phenology. *Climate Research*, 71(1), 47-61.
- Ahmad, Z., Anjum, S., Skalicky, M., Waraich, E. A., Muhammad Sabir Tariq, R., Ayub, M. A., ... & El Sabagh, A. (2021). Selenium alleviates the adverse effect of drought in oilseed crops camelina (Camelina sativa L.) and canola (Brassica napus L.). *Molecules*, 26(6), 1699.
- Ainsworth, E. A., & Rogers, A. (2007). The response of photosynthesis and stomatal conductance to rising [CO2]: mechanisms and environmental interactions. *Plant, cell* & environment, 30(3), 258-270.
- Arjona, J. M., Royo, C., Dreisigacker, S., Ammar, K., Subirà, J., & Villegas, D. (2020). Effect of allele combinations at Ppd-1 loci on durum wheat grain filling at contrasting latitudes. *Journal of agronomy and crop science*, 206(1), 64-75.
- Arshad, A., Raza, M. A., Zhang, Y., Zhang, L., Wang, X., Ahmed, M., & Habib-ur-Rehman, M. (2021). Impact of climate warming on cotton growth and yields in China and Pakistan: A regional perspective. *Agriculture*, 11(2), 97.
- Asare, E., & Scarisbrick, D. H. (1995). Rate of nitrogen and sulphur fertilizers on yield, yield components and seed quality of oilseed rape (Brassica napus L.). *Field Crops Research*, 44(1), 41-46.
- Balodis, O., & Gaile, Z. (2016, November). Sowing Date and Rate Effect on Winter Oilseed Rape (L.) Yield Components' Formation. In *Proceedings of the Latvian Academy of Sciences. Section B. Natural, Exact, and Applied Sciences.* (Vol. 70, No. 6, pp. 384-392).
- Begna, T. (2020). Effects of drought stress on crop production and productivity. *Intl J Res Stud Agric Sci*, *6*, 34-43.

- Ben-Ari, T., Boé, J., Ciais, P., Lecerf, R., Van der Velde, M., & Makowski, D. (2018). Causes and implications of the unforeseen 2016 extreme yield loss in the breadbasket of France. *Nature communications*, 9(1), 1627.
- Berg, P., Christensen, O. B., Klehmet, K., Lenderink, G., Olsson, J., Teichmann, C., & Yang,
  W. (2019). Summertime precipitation extremes in a EURO-CORDEX 0.11° ensemble at an hourly resolution. *Natural Hazards and Earth System Sciences*, 19(4), 957-971.
- Bernacchi, C. J., Kimball, B. A., Quarles, D. R., Long, S. P., & Ort, D. R. (2007). Decreases in stomatal conductance of soybean under open-air elevation of [CO2] are closely coupled with decreases in ecosystem evapotranspiration. *Plant physiology*, 143(1), 134-144.
- Beszterda, M., & Nogala-Kałucka, M. (2019). Current research developments on the processing and improvement of the nutritional quality of rapeseed (Brassica napus L.). *European Journal of Lipid Science and Technology*, 121(5), 1800045.
- Bhattacharya, A. (2022). Effect of low-temperature stress on germination, growth, and phenology of plants: A review. *Physiological processes in plants under low temperature stress*, 1-106.
- Boettcher, U., Weymann, W., Pullens, J. W., Olesen, J. E., & Kage, H. (2020). Development and evaluation of HUME-OSR: A dynamic crop growth model for winter oilseed rape. *Field Crops Research*, 246, 107679.
- Böttcher, U., Rampin, E., Hartmann, K., Zanetti, F., Flenet, F., Morison, M., & Kage, H. (2016). A phenological model of winter oilseed rape according to the BBCH scale. *Crop and Pasture Science*, 67(4), 345-358.
- Bregaglio, S., Donatelli, M., Confalonieri, R., Acutis, M., & Orlandini, S. (2011). Multi metric evaluation of leaf wetness models for large-area application of plant disease models. *Agricultural and Forest Meteorology*, 151(9), 1163-1172.
- Brown, J. K., Beeby, R., & Penfield, S. (2019). Yield instability of winter oilseed rape modulated by early winter temperature. *Scientific Reports*, 9(1), 6953.
- Cappelli, G., Bregaglio, S., Romani, M., Feccia, S., & Confalonieri, R. (2014). A software component implementing a library of models for the simulation of pre-harvest rice grain quality. *Computers and Electronics in Agriculture*, 104, 18-24.
- Ceglar, A., Zampieri, M., Toreti, A., & Dentener, F. (2019). Observed northward migration of agro-climate zones in Europe will further accelerate under climate change. *Earth's Future*, 7(9), 1088-1101.

- Challinor, A. J., Müller, C., Asseng, S., Deva, C., Nicklin, K. J., Wallach, D., ... & Koehler, A. K. (2018). Improving the use of crop models for risk assessment and climate change adaptation. *Agricultural systems*, 159, 296-306.
- Chen, C., Baethgen, W. E., & Robertson, A. (2013). Contributions of individual variation in temperature, solar radiation and precipitation to crop yield in the North China Plain, 1961–2003. *Climatic change*, 116, 767-788.
- Chen, H., & Sun, J. (2015). Changes in drought characteristics over China using the standardized precipitation evapotranspiration index. *Journal of Climate*, 28(13), 5430-5447.
- Chen, S., Stefanova, K., Siddique, K. H., & Cowling, W. A. (2021). Transient daily heat stress during the early reproductive phase disrupts pod and seed development in Brassica napus L. *Food and Energy Security*, 10(1), e262.
- Clausen, S. K., Frenck, G., Linden, L. G., Mikkelsen, T. N., Lunde, C., & Jørgensen, R. B. (2011). Effects of single and multifactor treatments with elevated temperature, CO2 and ozone on oilseed rape and barley. *Journal of Agronomy and Crop Science*, 197(6), 442-453.
- Cohn, A. S., VanWey, L. K., Spera, S. A., & Mustard, J. F. (2016). Cropping frequency and area response to climate variability can exceed yield response. *Nature Climate Change*, *6*(6), 601-604.
- Confalonieri, R., Francone, C., Cappelli, G., Stella, T., Frasso, N., Carpani, M., ... & Fernandes, E. (2013). A multi-approach software library for estimating crop suitability to environment. *Computers and Electronics in Agriculture*, *90*, 170-175.
- Czech Statistical Office (CSO). Agricultural Producer Price Indices, Average Prices of Agricultural Products. 2022. Available online: <u>https://vdb.czso.cz/vdbvo2/faces/en/index.jsf?page=vystup-</u> <u>objekt&pvo=ZEM02A&z=T&f=TABULKA&skupId=346&katalog=30840&pvo=ZE</u> <u>M02A&evo=v2266 ! ZEM02A-2023T 1</u> (accessed 10th June 2023).
- Deligios, P. A., Farci, R., Sulas, L., Hoogenboom, G., & Ledda, L. (2013). Predicting growth and yield of winter rapeseed in a Mediterranean environment: Model adaptation at a field scale. *Field Crops Research*, 144, 100-112.
- Donatelli, M., Cerrani, I., Fanchini, D., Fumagalli, D., & Rizzoli, A. E. (2012). Enhancing model reuse via component-centered modeling frameworks: the vision and example realizations.

- Drebenstedt, I., Hart, L., Poll, C., Marhan, S., Kandeler, E., Böttcher, C., ... & Högy, P. (2020). Do soil warming and changes in precipitation patterns affect seed yield and seed quality of field-grown winter oilseed rape?. *Agronomy*, *10*(4), 520.
- Elsgaard, L., Børgesen, C. D., Olesen, J. E., Siebert, S., Ewert, F., Peltonen-Sainio, P., ... & Skjelvåg, A. O. (2012). Shifts in comparative advantages for maize, oat and wheat cropping under climate change in Europe. *Food Additives & Contaminants: Part* A, 29(10), 1514-1526.
- Eshonkulov, R., Poyda, A., Ingwersen, J., Wizemann, H. D., Weber, T. K., Kremer, P., ... & Streck, T. (2019). Evaluating multi-year, multi-site data on the energy balance closure of eddy-covariance flux measurements at cropland sites in southwestern Germany. *Biogeosciences*, 16(2), 521-540.
- Falcon, W. P., Naylor, R. L., & Shankar, N. D. (2022). Rethinking global food demand for 2050. Population and Development Review, 48(4), 921-957.
- FAOSTAT. (2021). FAOSTAT database. Available online: https://www.fao.org/faostat/en/#data (Accessed date 10 June 2023).
- Habekotté, B. (1997). Indentification of strong and weak yield determining components of winter oilseed rape compared with winter wheat. *European Journal of Agronomy*, 7(4), 315-321.
- Hageman, A., & Van Volkenburgh, E. (2021). Sink strength maintenance underlies drought tolerance in common bean. *Plants*, *10*(3), 489.
- Hájková, L., Možný, M., Oušková, V., Bartošová, L., Dížková, P., & Žalud, Z. (2021). Meteorological variables that affect the beginning of flowering of the winter oilseed rape in the Czech Republic. *Atmosphere*, 12(11), 1444.
- He, L., Asseng, S., Zhao, G., Wu, D., Yang, X., Zhuang, W., ... & Yu, Q. (2015). Impacts of recent climate warming, cultivar changes, and crop management on winter wheat phenology across the Loess Plateau of China. Agricultural and Forest Meteorology, 200, 135-143.
- Hegewald, H., Wensch-Dorendorf, M., Sieling, K., & Christen, O. (2018). Impacts of break crops and crop rotations on oilseed rape productivity: A review. *European journal of* agronomy, 101, 63-77.
- Hennig, B. C., Hwang, S. F., Manolii, V. P., Turnbull, G., Robinson, S. V., & Strelkov, S. E. (2022). Evaluation of host resistance, hydrated lime, and weed control to manage clubroot in canola. *Horticulturae*, 8(3), 215.

- Herbert, C., Pablos, M., Vall-llossera, M., Camps, A., & Martínez-Fernández, J. (2020). Analyzing spatio-temporal factors to estimate the response time between smos and insitu soil moisture at different depths. *Remote Sensing*, 12(16), 2614.
- Hoffmann, H., Zhao, G., van Bussel, L. G., Enders, A., Specka, X., Sosa, C., ... & Ewert, F. (2015). Variability of effects of spatial climate data aggregation on regional yield simulation by crop models. *Climate Research*, 65, 53-69.
- Holtanova, E., Kalvova, J., Pisoft, P., & Miksovsky, J. (2014). Uncertainty in regional climate model outputs over the Czech Republic: the role of nested and driving models. *International journal of climatology*, 34(1), 27-35.
- Hoogenboom, G., Porter, C. H., Boote, K. J., Shelia, V., Wilkens, P. W., Singh, U., ... & Jones, J. W. (2019a). The DSSAT crop modeling ecosystem. In *Advances in crop modelling for a sustainable agriculture* (pp. 173-216). Burleigh Dodds Science Publishing.
- Hoogenboom, G., Porter, C. H., Boote, K. J., Shelia, V., Wilkens, P. W., Singh, U., ... & Jones, J. W. (2019b). Decision support system for agrotechnology transfer (DSSAT) version 4.7. 5.0 (www. DSSAT. net). DSSAT Foundation, Gainesville, Florida.
- Hunt, L. A., White, J. W., & Hoogenboom, G. (2001). Agronomic data: advances in documentation and protocols for exchange and use. *Agricultural Systems*, 70(2-3), 477-492.
- IPCC. (2014). Climate Change 2014: Synthesis Report. Contribution of Working Groups I, II and III to the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [Core Writing Team, R.K. Pachauri and L.A. Meyer (eds.)]. IPCC, Geneva, Switzerland, pp-151.
- IPCC. (2022). Climate Change 2022: Impacts, Adaptation, and Vulnerability. Contribution of Working Group II to the Sixth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change [H.-O. Pörtner, D.C. Roberts, M. Tignor, E.S. Poloczanska, K. Mintenbeck, A. Alegría, M. Craig, S. Langsdorf, S. Löschke, V. Möller, A. Okem, B. Rama (eds.)]. Cambridge University Press. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, UK and New York, NY, USA, pp-3056.
- Jacob, D., Kotova, L., Teichmann, C., Sobolowski, S. P., Vautard, R., Donnelly, C., ... & van Vliet, M. T. (2018). Climate impacts in Europe under+ 1.5 C global warming. *Earth's Future*, 6(2), 264-285.
- Jaggard, K. W., Qi, A., & Ober, E. S. (2010). Possible changes to arable crop yields by 2050. *Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society B: Biological Sciences*, 365(1554), 2835-2851.

- Jankovska-Bortkevič, E., Gavelienė, V., Koryznienė, D., Jankauskienė, J., Mockevičiūtė, R., & Jurkonienė, S. (2019). Response of winter oilseed rape to imitated temperature fluctuations in autumn-winter period. *Environmental and Experimental Botany*, 166, 103801.
- Jevšenak, J., Tychkov, I., Gričar, J., Levanič, T., Tumajer, J., Prislan, P., ... & Shishov, V. V. (2021). Growth-limiting factors and climate response variability in Norway spruce (Picea abies L.) along an elevation and precipitation gradients in Slovenia. *International Journal of Biometeorology*, 65, 311-324.
- Jones, J. W., Hoogenboom, G., Porter, C. H., Boote, K. J., Batchelor, W. D., Hunt, L. A., ... & Ritchie, J. T. (2003). The DSSAT cropping system model. *European journal of agronomy*, 18(3-4), 235-265.
- Joy, A., Dunshea, F. R., Leury, B. J., Clarke, I. J., DiGiacomo, K., & Chauhan, S. S. (2020). Resilience of small ruminants to climate change and increased environmental temperature: A review. *Animals*, 10(5), 867.
- Kersebaum, K. C. (2007). Modelling nitrogen dynamics in soil-crop systems with HERMES. *Nutrient Cycling in Agroecosystems*, 77, 39-52.
- Kersebaum, K. C. (2011). Special features of the HERMES model and additional procedures for parameterization, calibration, validation, and applications. *Methods of introducing* system models into agricultural research, 2, 65-94.
- Klik, A., & Eitzinger, J. (2010). Impact of climate change on soil erosion and the efficiency of soil conservation practices in Austria. *The Journal of Agricultural Science*, *148*(5), 529-541.
- Koch, G., Rolland, G., Dauzat, M., Bédiée, A., Baldazzi, V., Bertin, N., ... & Granier, C. (2019). Leaf production and expansion: A generalized response to drought stresses from cells to whole leaf biomass—A case study in the tomato compound leaf. *Plants*, 8(10), 409.
- Koch, S., Dunker, S., Kleinhenz, B., Röhrig, M., & Tiedemann, A. V. (2007). A crop lossrelated forecasting model for Sclerotinia stem rot in winter oilseed rape. *Phytopathology*, 97(9), 1186-1194.
- Korres, N. E., Norsworthy, J. K., Tehranchian, P., Gitsopoulos, T. K., Loka, D. A., Oosterhuis, D. M., ... & Palhano, M. (2016). Cultivars to face climate change effects on crops and weeds: a review. Agronomy for Sustainable Development, 36, 1-22.

- Lenz-Wiedemann, V. I. S., Klar, C. W., & Schneider, K. (2010). Development and test of a crop growth model for application within a Global Change decision support system. *Ecological Modelling*, 221(2), 314-329.
- Liu, B., Asseng, S., Müller, C., Ewert, F., Elliott, J., Lobell, D. B., ... & Zhu, Y. (2016). Similar estimates of temperature impacts on global wheat yield by three independent methods. *Nature Climate Change*, 6(12), 1130-1136.
- Lobell, D. B., Bänziger, M., Magorokosho, C., & Vivek, B. (2011). Nonlinear heat effects on African maize as evidenced by historical yield trials. *Nature climate change*, *1*(1), 42-45.
- Madsen, H., Lawrence, D., Lang, M., Martinkova, M., & Kjeldsen, T. R. (2014). Review of trend analysis and climate change projections of extreme precipitation and floods in Europe. *Journal of Hydrology*, 519, 3634-3650.
- Marjanović-Jeromela, A., Terzić, S., Jankulovska, M., Zorić, M., Kondić-Špika, A., Jocković, M., ... & Nagl, N. (2019). Dissection of year related climatic variables and their effect on winter rapeseed (Brassica napus L.) development and yield. Agronomy, 9(9), 517.
- Marthandan, V., Geetha, R., Kumutha, K., Renganathan, V. G., Karthikeyan, A., & Ramalingam, J. (2020). Seed priming: a feasible strategy to enhance drought tolerance in crop plants. *International journal of molecular sciences*, 21(21), 8258.
- Matar, S., Kumar, A., Holtgräwe, D., Weisshaar, B., & Melzer, S. (2021). The transition to flowering in winter rapeseed during vernalization. *Plant, Cell & Environment, 44*(2), 506-518.
- Meier, U., Bleiholder, H., Buhr, L., Feller, C., Hack, H., He
  ß, M., ... & Zwerger, P. (2009). The BBCH system to coding the phenological growth stages of plants-history and publications. *Journal für Kulturpflanzen*, 61(2), 41-52.
- Mendham, N. J., Shipway, P. A., & Scott, R. K. (1981). The effects of delayed sowing and weather on growth, development and yield of winter oil-seed rape (Brassica napus). *The Journal of Agricultural Science*, 96(2), 389-416.
- Merk, M., Goeppert, N., & Goldscheider, N. (2021). Deep desiccation of soils observed by long-term high-resolution measurements on a large inclined lysimeter. *Hydrology and Earth System Sciences*, 25(6), 3519-3538.

- Mihai, G., Curtu, A. L., Alexandru, A. M., Nita, I. A., Ciocîrlan, E., & Birsan, M. V. (2022). Growth and Adaptive Capacity of Douglas Fir Genetic Resources from Western Romania under Climate Change. *Forests*, 13(5), 805.
- Monfreda, C., Ramankutty, N., & Foley, J. A. (2008). Farming the planet: 2. Geographic distribution of crop areas, yields, physiological types, and net primary production in the year 2000. *Global biogeochemical cycles*, *22*(1).
- Montzka, C., Cosh, M., Nickeson, J., Camacho, F., Bayat, B., Al Bitar, A., ... & Wigneron, J. P. (2021). Soil moisture product validation good practices protocol.
- Morrison, M. J., & Stewart, D. W. (2002). Heat stress during flowering in summer Brassica. *Crop science*, 42(3), 797-803.
- Muntean, N., Chawdhery, R. A., Potopová, V., & Tűrkott, L. (2021). The ability of CROPGRO-Tomato model to simulate the growth characteristics of Thomas F1 tomato cultivar grown under open field conditions. *The Journal of Agricultural Science*, 159(7-8), 473-487.
- Nasim, W., Ahmad, A., Belhouchette, H., Fahad, S., & Hoogenboom, G. (2016). Evaluation of the OILCROP-SUN model for sunflower hybrids under different agrometeorological conditions of Punjab—Pakistan. *Field Crops Research*, 188, 17-30.
- Neumann, K., Verburg, P. H., Stehfest, E., & Müller, C. (2010). The yield gap of global grain production: A spatial analysis. *Agricultural systems*, *103*(5), 316-326.
- Nowosad, K., Liersch, A., Popławska, W., & Bocianowski, J. (2016). Genotype by environment interaction for seed yield in rapeseed (Brassica napus L.) using additive main effects and multiplicative interaction model. *Euphytica*, 208, 187-194.
- Ouvrard, P., & Jacquemart, A. L. (2019). Review of methods to investigate pollinator dependency in oilseed rape (Brassica napus). *Field Crops Research*, 231, 18-29.
- Papadimitriou, L., Trnka, M., Harrison, P., & Holman, I. (2019). Cross-sectoral and transnational interactions in national-scale climate change impacts assessment—the case of the Czech Republic. *Regional Environmental Change*, 19, 2453-2464.
- Paulauskas, A., Jodinskienė, M., Griciuvienė, L., Žukauskienė, J., Petraitienė, E., & Brazauskienė, I. (2013). Morphological traits and genetic diversity of differently overwintered oilseed rape (Brassica napus L.) cultivars. Zemdirbyste-Agriculture, 100(4), 409-416.

- Peltonen-Sainio, P., Jauhiainen, L., Trnka, M., Olesen, J. E., Calanca, P., Eckersten, H., ... & Orlandini, S. (2010). Coincidence of variation in yield and climate in Europe. Agriculture, ecosystems & environment, 139(4), 483-489.
- Potopová, V., Trifan, T., Trnka, M., De Michele, C., Semerádová, D., Fischer, M., ... & Clothier, B. (2023a). Copulas modelling of maize yield losses-drought compound events using the multiple remote sensing indices over the Danube River Basin. Agricultural Water Management, 280, 108217.
- Potopová, V., Muntean, N., Chawdhery, M. R.A., Trifan, T., Zehnálek, P., Soukup, J., Potop, I., Zahradníček, O., & Možný, M. (2023). Modeling compound climate impacts on growth, development and yield parameters of field grown thermophilic vegetables and oilseed rape in the Decision Support System for the Agrotechnology Transfer – DSSAT. *Practical Methodology*, Department of Agroecology and Crop Production, Faculty of Agrobiology, Food and Natural Resources, Czech University of Life Sciences Prague. p-105. ISBN 978-80-213-3286-7.
- Potopová, V., Lhotka, O., Možný, M., & Musiolková, M. (2021a). Vulnerability of hopyields due to compound drought and heat events over European key-hop regions. *International Journal of Climatology*, 41, E2136-E2158.
- Potopová, V., Tűrkott, L., Musiolková, M., Možný, M., & Lhotka, O. (2021b). The compound nature of soil temperature anomalies at various depths in the Czech Republic. *Theoretical and Applied Climatology*, 146, 1257-1275.
- Potopova, V., Trnka, M., Hamouz, P., Soukup, J., & Castraveţ, T. (2020). Statistical modelling of drought-related yield losses using soil moisture-vegetation remote sensing and multiscalar indices in the south-eastern Europe. *Agricultural Water Management*, 236, 106168.
- Potopová, V., Štěpánek, P., Zahradníček, P., Farda, A., Türkott, L., & Soukup, J. (2018). Projected changes in the evolution of drought on various timescales over the Czech Republic according to Euro-CORDEX models. *International Journal of Climatology*, 38, e939-e954.
- Pulido-Moncada, M., Petersen, C. T., & Munkholm, L. J. (2021). Limiting water range: Crop responses related to in-season soil water dynamics, weather conditions, and subsoil compaction. *Soil Science Society of America Journal*, 85(1), 85-101.
- Pullens, J. W. M., Sharif, B., Trnka, M., Balek, J., Semenov, M. A., & Olesen, J. E. (2019). Risk factors for European winter oilseed rape production under climate change. *Agricultural and Forest Meteorology*, 272, 30-39.

- Qian, B., Jing, Q., Bélanger, G., Shang, J., Huffman, T., Liu, J., & Hoogenboom, G. (2018). Simulated canola yield responses to climate change and adaptation in Canada. *Agronomy journal*, 110(1), 133-146.
- Qian, B., Zhang, X., Smith, W., Grant, B., Jing, Q., Cannon, A. J., ... & Zhao, J. (2019). Climate change impacts on Canadian yields of spring wheat, canola and maize for global warming levels of 1.5 C, 2.0 C, 2.5 C and 3.0 C. *Environmental Research Letters*, 14(7), 074005.
- Rahman, H., Bennett, R. A., & Kebede, B. (2018). Molecular mapping of QTL alleles of Brassica oleracea affecting days to flowering and photosensitivity in spring Brassica napus. *PLoS One*, 13(1), e0189723.
- Ran, H., Kang, S., Hu, X., Yao, N., Li, S., Wang, W., ... & Challinor, A. J. (2022). A framework to quantify uncertainty of crop model parameters and its application in arid Northwest China. *Agricultural and Forest Meteorology*, *316*, 108844.
- Rathke, G. W., Behrens, T., & Diepenbrock, W. (2006). Integrated nitrogen management strategies to improve seed yield, oil content and nitrogen efficiency of winter oilseed rape (Brassica napus L.): a review. *Agriculture, ecosystems & environment, 117*(2-3), 80-108.
- Rasheed, M. W., Tang, J., Sarwar, A., Shah, S., Saddique, N., Khan, M. U., ... & Sultan, M. (2022). Soil moisture measuring techniques and factors affecting the moisture dynamics: A comprehensive review. *Sustainability*, 14(18), 11538.
- Ray, D. K., Gerber, J. S., MacDonald, G. K., & West, P. C. (2015). Climate variation explains a third of global crop yield variability. *Nature communications*, 6(1), 5989.
- Reddy, P. P. (2015). Impacts of climate change on agriculture. *Climate resilient agriculture for ensuring food security*, 43-90.
- Rivelli, G. M., Gomez, N. V., Mantese, A. I., Miralles, D. J., Abeledo, L. G., & Rondanini, D. P. (2023). Photothermal Quotient Describes the Combined Effects of Heat and Shade Stresses on Canola Seed Productivity. *Seeds*, 2(1), 149-164.
- Rivero, R. M., Mittler, R., Blumwald, E., & Zandalinas, S. I. (2022). Developing climateresilient crops: improving plant tolerance to stress combination. *The Plant Journal*, 109(2), 373-389.
- Robertson, M. J., & Lilley, J. M. (2016). Simulation of growth, development and yield of canola (Brassica napus) in APSIM. Crop and Pasture Science, 67(4), 332-344.

- Rulfová, Z., Beranová, R., & Plavcová, E. (2021). Compound temperature and precipitation events in the Czech Republic: differences of stratiform versus convective precipitation in station and reanalysis data. *Atmosphere*, *12*(1), 87.
- Rulfová, Z., Beranová, R., & Kyselý, J. (2017). Climate change scenarios of convective and large-scale precipitation in the Czech Republic based on EURO-CORDEX data. *International Journal of Climatology*, 37(5), 2451-2465.
- Ruosteenoja, K., Markkanen, T., Venäläinen, A., Räisänen, P., & Peltola, H. (2018). Seasonal soil moisture and drought occurrence in Europe in CMIP5 projections for the 21st century. *Climate Dynamics*, 50, 1177-1192.
- Rys, M., Pociecha, E., Oliwa, J., Ostrowska, A., Jurczyk, B., Saja, D., & Janeczko, A. (2020). Deacclimation of winter oilseed rape—insight into physiological changes. *Agronomy*, 10(10), 1565.
- Samaniego, L., Thober, S., Kumar, R., Wanders, N., Rakovec, O., Pan, M., ... & Marx, A. (2018). Anthropogenic warming exacerbates European soil moisture droughts. *Nature Climate Change*, 8(5), 421-426.
- Santos, J. F., Pulido-Calvo, I., & Portela, M. M. (2010). Spatial and temporal variability of droughts in Portugal. *Water Resources Research*, *46*(3).
- Saseendran, S. A., Nielsen, D. C., Ma, L., & Ahuja, L. R. (2010). Adapting CROPGRO for simulating spring canola growth with both RZWQM2 and DSSAT 4.0. Agronomy Journal, 102(6), 1606-1621.
- Sehgal, A., Sita, K., Siddique, K. H., Kumar, R., Bhogireddy, S., Varshney, R. K., ... & Nayyar, H. (2018). Drought or/and heat-stress effects on seed filling in food crops: impacts on functional biochemistry, seed yields, and nutritional quality. *Frontiers in plant science*, 9, 1705.
- Shahzad, A., Ullah, S., Dar, A. A., Sardar, M. F., Mehmood, T., Tufail, M. A., ... & Haris, M. (2021). Nexus on climate change: Agriculture and possible solution to cope future climate change stresses. *Environmental Science and Pollution Research*, 28, 14211-14232.
- Sharif, B., Makowski, D., Plauborg, F., & Olesen, J. E. (2017). Comparison of regression techniques to predict response of oilseed rape yield to variation in climatic conditions in Denmark. *European Journal of Agronomy*, 82, 11-20.
- Smith, P., & Olesen, J. E. (2010). Synergies between the mitigation of, and adaptation to, climate change in agriculture. *The Journal of Agricultural Science*, *148*(5), 543-552.

- Takashima, N. E., Rondanini, D. P., Puhl, L. E., & Miralles, D. J. (2013). Environmental factors affecting yield variability in spring and winter rapeseed genotypes cultivated in the southeastern Argentine Pampas. *European Journal of Agronomy*, 48, 88-100.
- Trnka, M., Olesen, J. E., Kersebaum, K. C., Skjelvåg, A. O., Eitzinger, J., Seguin, B., ... & Žalud, Z. (2011). Agroclimatic conditions in Europe under climate change. *Global Change Biology*, 17(7), 2298-2318.
- Tubiello, F. N., Amthor, J. S., Boote, K. J., Donatelli, M., Easterling, W., Fischer, G., ... & Rosenzweig, C. (2007). Crop response to elevated CO<sub>2</sub> and world food supply: a comment on "Food for Thought..." by Long *et al.*, Science 312: 1918–1921, 2006. *European journal of agronomy*, 26(3), 215-223.
- United Nations. World Population Prospects (2022). The 2022 Revision of World Population Prospects.online: <u>https://www.un.org/development/desa/pd/sites/www.un.org.develop</u> <u>ment.desa.pd/files/wpp2022\_summary\_of\_results.pdf</u> (Assessed 13 June 2023)
- Van Duren, I., Voinov, A., Arodudu, O., & Firrisa, M. T. (2015). Where to produce rapeseed biodiesel and why? Mapping European rapeseed energy efficiency. *Renewable Energy*, 74, 49-59.
- Wahab, A., Abdi, G., Saleem, M. H., Ali, B., Ullah, S., Shah, W., ... & Marc, R. A. (2022). Plants' physio-biochemical and phyto-hormonal responses to alleviate the adverse effects of drought stress: A comprehensive review. *Plants*, 11(13), 1620.
- Nasim, W., Ahmad, A., Belhouchette, H., Fahad, S., & Hoogenboom, G. (2016). Evaluation of the OILCROP-SUN model for sunflower hybrids under different agrometeorological conditions of Punjab—Pakistan. *Field Crops Research*, 188, 17-30.
- Walker, N. J., & Schulze, R. E. (2008). Climate change impacts on agro-ecosystem sustainability across three climate regions in the maize belt of South Africa. Agriculture, ecosystems & environment, 124(1-2), 114-124.
- Wallenhammar, A. C., Vilvert, E., Bergqvist, S., Olson, Å., & Berlin, A. (2022). Scientific evidence of sustainable plant disease protection strategies for oilseed rape (Brassica napus) in Sweden: a systematic map. *Environmental Evidence*, 11(1), 22.
- Wang, D. (2017). Water use efficiency and optimal supplemental irrigation in a high yield wheat field. *Field Crops Research*, 213, 213-220.
- Wang, C., Xu, M., Wang, Y., Batchelor, W. D., Zhang, J., Kuai, J., & Ling, L. (2022). Long-Term Optimal Management of Rapeseed Cultivation Simulated with the CROPGRO-Canola Model. Agronomy, 12(5), 1191.

- Webber, H., Ewert, F., Olesen, J. E., Müller, C., Fronzek, S., Ruane, A. C., ... & Wallach, D. (2018). Diverging importance of drought stress for maize and winter wheat in Europe. *Nature communications*, 9(1), 4249.
- Weymann, W., Böttcher, U., Sieling, K., & Kage, H. (2015). Effects of weather conditions during different growth phases on yield formation of winter oilseed rape. *Field Crops Research*, 173, 41-48.
- Williams, J. R. (2002). The APEX manure management component. In *Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL): Environmental Regulations, Proceedings of 2002 Conference* (p. 44). American Society of Agricultural and Biological Engineers.
- Williams, J. R., Jones, C. A., & Dyke, P. T. (1984). A modeling approach to determining the relationship between erosion and soil productivity. *Transactions of the ASAE*, 27(1), 129-0144.
- Wittkop, B., Snowdon, R. J., & Friedt, W. (2009). Status and perspectives of breeding for enhanced yield and quality of oilseed crops for Europe. *Euphytica*, 170, 131-140.
- Wollmer, A. C., Pitann, B., & Mühling, K. H. (2018). Waterlogging events during stem elongation or flowering affect yield of oilseed rape (Brassica napus L.) but not seed quality. *Journal of agronomy and crop science*, 204(2), 165-174.
- Wu, W., Shah, F., Duncan, R. W., & Ma, B. L. (2020). Grain yield, root growth habit and lodging of eight oilseed rape genotypes in response to a short period of heat stress during flowering. *Agricultural and Forest Meteorology*, 287, 107954.
- Xiao, D., & Tao, F. (2014). Contributions of cultivars, management and climate change to winter wheat yield in the North China Plain in the past three decades. *European journal* of agronomy, 52, 112-122.
- Xiao, D., Tao, F., Liu, Y., Shi, W., Wang, M., Liu, F., ... & Zhu, Z. (2013). Observed changes in winter wheat phenology in the North China Plain for 1981–2009. *International Journal of Biometeorology*, 57, 275-285.
- Xu, M., Wang, C., Ling, L., Batchelor, W. D., Zhang, J., & Kuai, J. (2021). Sensitivity analysis of the CROPGRO-Canola model in China: A case study for rapeseed. *Plos* one, 16(11), e0259929.
- Yang, Y., Xu, W., Hou, P., Liu, G., Liu, W., Wang, Y., ... & Li, S. (2019). Improving maize grain yield by matching maize growth and solar radiation. *Scientific reports*, 9(1), 3635.

- Yang, C., Gan, Y., Harker, K. N., Kutcher, H. R., Gulden, R., Irvine, B., & May, W. E. (2014). Up to 32% yield increase with optimized spatial patterns of canola plant establishment in western Canada. *Agronomy for sustainable development*, 34, 793-801.
- Zscheischler, J., Martius, O., Westra, S., Bevacqua, E., Raymond, C., Horton, R. M., ... & Vignotto, E. (2020). A typology of compound weather and climate events. *Nature reviews earth & environment*, 1(7), 333-347.
- Zahradníček, P., Farda, A., Skalák, P., Trnka, M., Meitner, J., & Rajdl, K. (2016). Projection of drought-inducing climate conditions in the Czech Republic according to Euro-CORDEX models. *Climate Research*, 70(2-3), 179-193.
- Zandvoort, M., Campos, I. S., Vizinho, A., Penha-Lopes, G., Lorencová, E. K., van der Brugge, R., ... & Jeuken, A. B. (2017). Adaptation pathways in planning for uncertain climate change: Applications in Portugal, the Czech Republic and the Netherlands. *Environmental Science & Policy*, 78, 18-26.
- Zanetti, F., Alberghini, B., Marjanović Jeromela, A., Grahovac, N., Rajković, D., Kiprovski, B., & Monti, A. (2021). Camelina, an ancient oilseed crop actively contributing to the rural renaissance in Europe. A review. *Agronomy for Sustainable Development*, 41, 1-18.
- Zhao, W., Liu, L., Shen, Q., Yang, J., Han, X., Tian, F., & Wu, J. (2020). Effects of water stress on photosynthesis, yield, and water use efficiency in winter wheat. *Water*, 12(8), 2127.

# Appendices



Crop data collection activities



Soil sampling and laboratory analysis